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Strategic Report

“it has been another excellent year for the
Company with a 28.2% share price total return
for shareholders. The net asset value of the
Company increased by 20.4% in the year on a
total return basis and substantially outperformed
its benchmark, the Numis Smaller Companies
Index (excluding investment companies), which
increased by 10.4%.”

Jamie Cayzer-Colvin, Chairman
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Strategic Report: Performance Highlights

1

Total Return Performance over the year to 31 May 2015

Discount at year end*

Discount?

Total Return Performance for the penods ended 31 May 2015

(including dividends reinvested and excluding transaction costs)

1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years

Yo % % %

NAW 204 1109 1916 20928
Share pnice? 282 1652 246.3 3700
Benchmark® 104 832 1239 177
Average Sector NAV® 143 883 167 1 2543
Average Sector Share Price’ 161 1075 1808 3044
FTSE All-Share Index 75 522 686 1168
FTSE SmallCap Index (excluding investment companies) 86 96.5 1194 1047
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Strategic Report: Performance Highlights (continued)

NAV per share at year end (debt at par) NAV per share at year end (debt at fair value)

205 194.1P 2010 637.6P |20s 792.1P 201. 634.3p

Share price at year end Gearing at year end

2015 686-0p 2014 547-0p 2015 7-50/0 2014 9-10/0

Dividend for year Dividend yield®

2015 1 13.5p8 200 11.0Pp 2015 2.0% 2014 2.0%0

Ongoing Charge for year'® Total net assets

2015 0.46%0 2014 0.44% |25 £563M 201« £476M

—

Net asset value per ordinary share total return (including dividends renvested and excluding transaction costs) with the Company's ssue of Debenture Stock and Preference
Stock included at par value

Share price total return using migd-market closing price

Numis Smaller Companies Index (excluding investment companies)

Calculated using published daily NAVs with debt at par including current year revenue

Graph shows the Company's share price discount to NAV compared with the average discount of the AIC UK Smaller Compames sector over the year to 31 May 2015
Average NAV of the AIC UK Smaller Comparues sector

Average share price of the AIC UK Smaller Companies sector

Thia represents an intenm dividend of 3 5p and a proposed final dwvidend of 10 Op. See pags 48 for more detals

Based on the ordinary dwvidends paid for the year and the mid-market share price at the year end

10 Ongoing charge excluding performance fee Ongoing charge including performance fee 1s 0 88% (2014 0 56%)

Sources Mormingstar Funddata, Morningstar Direct, Henderson, Datastream

A glossary of terms 19 included on pages 20 and 21
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Strategic Report: Business Model

Strategy

The strategy of the Company 1s to pursue is investment objective
by operating as an investment trust company The investment trust
company structure allows the shareholders, whether institutions
or private investors, to access a diversified portfolio of
investments that 1s professionally managed The principal actvity
remained unchanged throughout the year ended 31 May 2015

Investment Objective

The Company's investment objective 1s to maximise shareholders'
total returns by investing mainly in smaller comparues that are
quoted in the United Kingdom The strategy 1s to use ngorous
research to identfy high-quality smaller companies with strong
growth potental The benchmark 1s the Numis Smaller Companies
Index (excluding investment companies) (previously called the
Hoare Govett Smaller Companes Index) Generally, new
investments are made in constituents of the benchmark index
but they may continue to be held when the underlying comparnies
grow out of the smaller companies sector Once a portfaolio
company enters the FTSE 100 Index the Fund Manager has,

in normal circumstances, six months to sell the position.

Investment Policy

The Company's portfolio 1s managed within a framewaork of
investment limits and restnctions determined by the Board, the
prnmary purpose of which is to spread and mitigate investment nisk

Dwersification
The Company maintains a diversified portfolic, which s detailed
on pages 8, 14 and 15 The portfolic 1s actively managed

by Henderson, who provide regular reports on investment actwity
and portfolio construction to the Directors at and between Board
meetings The Company will not invest mare than 5% of its total
gross assets, calculated as at the time of investment (or additional
investment), in any one holding The Company will not make any
investment that, calculated at the time of investment (or additional
investment), would result in it holding more than 10% of an
investee company's equity The Board may gwe approval to
Henderson to exceed these imits to as far as 10% and 20%
respectively but only in exceptional circumstances

Asset Allocation

Generally, the Company will invest in smaller companies that are
quoted in the United Kingdom Investments may include shares,
secunties and related financial instruments, including derivatives

Gearing

The Company will borrow money for investment purposes If the
Board considers it appropriate Net borrowings are hmited to a
maximum of 30% of the value of sharehotders’ funds

General

In accordance with the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority,
the Company will not invest more than 15% of its gross assets in
the shares of other listed closed-ended investment funds, including
investment trusts, and will not invest more than 10% of its gross
assets in comparnues that themselves may invest more than 15%
of their gross assets in listed closed-ended investment funds

Management

The Company has an independent Board of Directors which has
appointed Henderson Investment Funds Limited (“HIFL") to act as
its Alternative Investment Fund Manager HIFL delegates
investment management services to Henderson Global Investors
Limited in accordance with an agreement which was effective from
22 July 2014 and can be terminated on six menths’ notice Prior to
29 July 2014 Henderson Global Investors Limited was appointed as
Investment Manager Both entities are authonsed and regulated by
the Financial Conduct Authorty (*FCAT) References to Henderson
within this report refer to the services provided by both entities

The fund management team s led by Neill Hermon, who was
appointed as the Company’s Fund Manager with effect from
November 2002 Ned Hermon has a shareholding in the ordinary
shares of the Company He recewves a proportion of any
performance fee paid by the Company to Henderson and a
proportion of that 1s deferred intc further shares in the Company

Henderson and its subsidianes afso provide accounting, company
secretanal and general admiristrative services Some of the
administration and accounting senices are carried out, on behalf of
Henderson, by BNP Parbas Secunties Services Rachel Peat ACIS
acts as Company Secretary on behalf of the Corporate Secretary,
Henderson Secretanal Services Limited

The following details the fee arrangements for the year under
review The management fee payable to Henderson 1s calculated
quarterly as a percentage of the value of the net chargeable assets
(being total assets less current habilities before deducting prior
charges) under management on the last day of the quarter
preceding the quarter 1n respect of which the calculation 1s made
Assets under management for the purpose of calculating the
management fee exclude any holdings in funds managed by
Henderson The management fee ts payable quarterly in advance
Duning the year ended 31 May 2015 the percentage fee rate was
00875% per quarter (035% per annum) (2014 the same)

In addition, the management agreement provides for the payment of
a performance fee, calculated as 15% of any outperformance of the
benchmark index, on a total return basis, over the Company's
accounting year This 1s subject to a hmit on the total management
fees payable in any one year of 1 0% of the average value of the net
assets of the Company during the year (calculated monthly) and an
absclute imit to the performance fee of £2,000,000 in any one year
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Strategic Report: Business Model (continued)

There 1s a further cap to the effect that any enhancement to net
asset value resulting from share buy-backs in excess of 5% of the
opening issued share capitat 1s excluded from the calculation of the
performance fee for the year No performance fee 15 payable if on
the last day of the Company's accounting year the Company's share
price 1s lower than the share price as at the preceding year end If
on the last day of the Company’s accounting year the net asset
value per share, calculated, in accordance with the Company's
accounting policies, net of costs (including any performance fee), 1s
equal to or lower than the net asset value per share as at the
preceding year end, the performance fee payable will be restricted
to such amount, if any, as will result in the net asset value per share
being higher than the net asset value per share at the preceding
year end

Any underperformance relative to the benchmark, or any
unrewarded outperformance (for example as a result of a cap),
will be carmed forward and set against any cutperformance or
underperformance respectively in subsequent years The net
amount of outperformance or underperformance carned forward
1s termed the Histonic Amount.

A performance fee of £2,000,000 is payable in respect of the year
ended 31 May 2015 (2014 £551,000) The Histeric Amount
carried forward at 31 May 2015 was £59,797,100 (2014
£23,454,042)

Fee Review

The management agreement provides for a formal review every
three years of the fee arrangements with Henderson Following a
review the Board and Henderson have agreed a revised fee basis
effective from 1 June 2015 The Company's advisers confirmed it
was not necessary to seek shareholder approval due to the nature
of the changes, which are summanised below

The management fee 1s now calculated on 0 35% of net assets
{0 0875% per quarter)

The performance fee will continue to be calculated as 15% of any
outperfarmance of the benchmark index, on a total return basis, over
the Company's financial year However, the £2,000,000 absolute
hmit on the performance fee in any one year has been removed

The total management and performance fees payable in any one
year from 1 June 2015 are subject to a limit of 0 9% of the
average value of the net assets of the Company dunng the year
(calculated monthly)

Provisions regarding the enhancement to net asset value resulting
from share-buybacks, and the requirements for the share pnce and
net asset value to be higher than at the preceding year end before
a performance fee will be payable remain unchanged Any
underperformance relative to the benchmark, or any unrewarded
outperformance will continue to be carned forward
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Strategic Report: Chairman’s Statement

The Chairman of the Company, Jamie Cayzer-Colvin, reports
on the year to 31 May 2015

Performance

it has been ancther excellent year for the Company with a 28 2%
share price total return for shareholders The net asset value of the
Company increased by 20 4% in the year on a total return basis and
substantally outperformed its benchmark, the Numis Smaller
Companies Index (excluding investment companies), which Increased
by 10 4%

QOver the past ten years our net asset value total return has been
292 8% versus a total return from the Numis Smaller Companies
Index (excluding investment companies) of 217 7%, the FTSE
All-Share Index of 1168% and the FTSE SmallCap Index (excluding
investment companies) of 104 7%. This 1s a compound annual return
to shareholders of 14 7% and 15 continuing testimony to the skills of
our Fund Manager, Nell Hermon and his team

I would, as always, like to thank all the Henderson staff and my
Board for their efforts throughout the year on behalf of shareholders

Revenue and Dividend

The revenue return per share has increased to 15 Op, compared with
12 7p for the previous year The Board 1s proposing a final dwvidend
for the year of 10 Op per share, making a total dividend for the year
of 135p (2014 110p)as an intenim dividend of 3 5p was paid In
March The final dwidend 1s of course subject to shareholder approval
at the Annuat General Meeting to be held in October

Discount” and Share Buy-backs

Duning the year the AIC UK Smaller Cempanies sector as a whole
traded at an average discount of 12 4% to NAV, with highs and
lows of 14 9% and 9 1% respectively At the year end, the
Company's shares traded at a discount of 90% The Company's
discount ranged from 17 7% to 7 7% with the average discount
over the year being 14 1%

The Board continues to monitor the discount and will from time to
hime buy back shares, though we do not belteve that share buy-backs
have a significant effect on the discount other than in the short term

Management Fee Arrangements

Your Board has reviewed the fee arrangements with Henderson and
concluded that it continues to be in the best interests of
shareholders to have a combination of a very low base management
fee and a performance fee incentive With effect from 1 June 2015
the base management fee will be 0 35% of net assets rather than
gross assets meaning that not only will the base fee be iower but
Henderson will only be rewarded for managing borrowings if those
borrowings deliver investment outperformance that result in the
payment of a performance fee The performance fee arrangement
remains unchanged save that the monetary imit of £2 0 million has
been removed and the percentage cap on total fees in any one
financral year has been reduced from 1 0% to 0 9%. The monetary
cap was set when your Company was half its present size and your
Board feels 1t 1s a more appropriate incentive to have a single lower
percentage cap Full details of the fee arrangements are set out on
page 5 However, as an illustration of the impact of the fee, had the
arrangements been in place in the year under review, total
management fees would have been £4,378,000 rather than the
actual £3,794,000, reflecting the excepbonal outperformance
achieved by Henderson for shareholders Your Board 1s confident
that these new management fee arrangements will properly
incentivise Henderson to continue to outperform

Outlook

The last six years have been very positive for equity markets and
particularly the smaller companies sector Recent events like the UK
general election have bolstered that performance, so investors may
be concerned about how long this can last. Yet bonds and cash
remain unattractive to investors, so there will continue to be a steady
flow of funds into equities, which should help to maintain present
leveis Smaller companies’ stocks are also less well-researched and
followed than those of large companies, which means that value can
be found by stock pickers like Neill There will continue to be
uncertainty about the UK’s posihon in Europe until the referendum
But | am confident that Neil's style of investing 15 well suited to the
challenges ahead

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at

11 30am on Frday 2 October 2015 at the Registered Office, 201
Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3AE The Notice of Meeting is set out in
the accompanying circular to shareholders We would encourage as
many shareholders as possible to attend for the opportunity to meet
the Board and to watch a presentation from Nel Hermon reviewing
the year and looking forward to the year ahead

For the first time, the Company's AGM will be broadcast live on the
internet. If you are unable to attend in person you can watch the
meeting as it happens by visitng www henderson com/trustshve

Jamie Cayzer-Colvin
Charman

*The annual digcount 1s calculated as a simple average of the daily discounts downloaded from Datastream
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Total Return Performance over the 10 years to 31 May 2015

Financial Information

NAV per ordinary

share Discount
Mid-
With market With
With | debt at | price per With debt at Profit/
Net | debtat | market | ardinary debt at market | (loss) for |Revenue Capital Total
At assets par value share par value yoar return return retumn | Dividend Expenses*
31 May R000 p p p % LY £'000 P p p 4] %
2006 280953 | 2804 | 2730 2328 | (1698) | (1473)| 67,005 183 64.62 66 45 135 | 060(0.83)
2007 339,700 | 3921 3851 3235 | (1750)| (1600)| 96,768 212 | 10258 | 10471 170 | 0.55(131)
2008 255471 | 3176 | 3109 2520 | (2065)| (1894)|(66,112) 464 | (8396)| (79.32) 380 | 051(051)
2009 166,349 | 2021 196.9 1870 | (1737)| (1519)|(90,365) 630 |(12171)|(11541) 560 | 0.51(051)
2010 207533 | 2771 2697 2160 | (2205) | (1991)| 59,540 459 7470 7929 360 | 058 (058)
2011 298,184 | 398.1 3925 3194 | (1977)| (1862)| 93,342 491 11970 | 12461 420 | 060(118)
2012 279926 | 3745 | 3679 2843 | (2409)| (2272)((14,622) 607 | (2562)| (1955) 550 | 050 (050)
2013 403,420 | 5400 | 5350 4540 | (1593)| (1514 127,718 624 | 16472 | 17096 650 | 047(107)
2014 476,281 6376 | 6343 5470 { (1421)] (1376)| 79,958 1267 89437 | 10704 1100 | 044(056)
2015 563,321 7541 752.1 686 0 (9.03) (879)| 95631 1504 | 11298 | 12802 1350 | 046 (088)

1 Net asset value per ordinary share total return {including dwidends remnvested and excluding transaction costs) with the Company's issue of Debenture Stock and Preference

Stock included at par value
Share pnce total return using mid-market closing price
Numis Smaller Comparues Index {excluding investment companies)

[~ L]

4 Using Total Expensa Ratio methodology for 2011 and provious years, Ongoing Charge msthodology thereafter, figurss excluding performance fea (figures in brackets include
performance tee)
Sources Mormingstar Funddata, Henderson, Datastream
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Performance Attribution

Year ended 31 May

2015 2014
NAV total return 204 199
Benchmark total return 104 181
Relative performance 100 (43
Made up
Stock selection 100 04
Gearng 09 09
Share buy backs 00 00
Expenses -09 05
Ten Largest Investments at 31 May 2015
Valuation
Ranking Ranking 2015 Portfolio
2015 2014 Company Principal activities £'000 %
1 1 Bellway house building 20,489 34
2 6 e2v Technologies electroric components 17,809 29
3 18 Howden Joinery kitchen manufacturer and retailer 14,691 24
4 5 Paragon buy to let mortgage provider 14,158 23
5 12 Intermediate Capital mezzanine finance 12,679 21
6 Informa business to business information 12,423 21
7 Interserve international contractor 12090 20
8 4 Spectns electronic control and process 11,600 19
instrumentation
S 10 Victrex speciality chemicals 11,270 19
10 8 WS Atkins engineering consultancy 11,200 19
138,399 229

Analysis of the Portfolio by Sector at 31 May

Sources Factset, Henderson
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The Fund Manager of the portfolio, Nell Hermon, reports on the
year to 31 May 2015

Market — year in review

The year under review was a positive one for equity markets This
was due to supportive monetary policies from developed world
Central Banks, a gently improving global macro-economic situation
and the relative attractiveness of equiies over other asset classes
The introducton of quantitative easing by the ECB and the surprise
majonty achieved by the Conservative Party in the UK general
election were additional boosts to the UK equity market The
fundamentals of the corporate sector remamned strong Companies
continued to grow therr dwidends whilst balance sheets remaned
rabust. Corporate earnings growth, however, was subdued as profits
in the ail and gas sector collapsed and the strength of stering diluted
the value of overseas earnings for UK companies

Smaller companies matenally outperformed larger comparnies over

the year, The Numis Smaller Companies Index (excluding investment
companies) has now outperformed the FTSE All-Share Index for the
last seven years consecutively (and in fifteen of the last sixteen years).

Fund Performance

The Company had an exceptional year in performance terms -
outperforming its benchmark and nising in absclute terms The net
asset value rose 20 49, on a total return basis This compares to a
nse of 10 4% (total return) from the Numis Smaller Companies Index
{excluding investment companies) and 8 6% (total return) from the
FTSE Small Cap Index {excluding investment companies) The
outperformance came from a combination of underlying positve
portfolio performance and a positive contnbution from gearning in the
Company, which can be seen in the attnbution analysts on page 8
The year under review 1s the eleventh year of outperformance of

our benchmark, the Numis Smaller Companies Index (excluding
investment companies), in the last twelve years

Geanng

Geanng started the year at 9 1% and ended 1t at 7 5%. The gearning
15 provided by a combination of the £20 million 105% 2016
Debenture with the remainder by short term bank borrowings
Geaning was a posttive contnbutor to performance in the year as
markets rose and has been a significant posrtive over the 12 years
I have managed the investment portfolio.

Attribution Analysis

The tables below and overleaf show the top five contributors to, and
the bottom five detractors from, the Company's relatve performance

Principal contributors

Relative

12 month retum contribution

% %

Beliway +752 +16
Taylor Wimpey +809 +15
AA +649 +11
Howden Jomnery +630 +10
e2v Technologies +58.2 +09

Bellway 1s a national UK housebuiider The UK housing market has
seen an impressive recovery in the recent past aided by improving
consumer confidence, low interest rates and Government inhiatives,
particularly Help to Buy Margins, volumes and profits have been
nsing strongly and the outlook remains for continued strong growth
Bellway 15 looking to exploit these conditions by expanding its
national foolpnnt, whilst maintaiming a strong land-bank and balance
sheet. The sector outlook 15 aided by a bemign land market as the
number of competitors has reduced from the previous cycle, the
structural under-supply of housing in the UK and the capital
disciphne Bellway and its peers are displaying

Taylor Wimpey 1s a national UK housebuilder From the depths of
the housing downturn in 2007/08 Taylor Wimpey has made an
impressive recovery it has strengthened its over leveraged balance
sheet through the sale of its US operation and by raismng money
through a nghts 1ssue Financial returns have been improving through
the acquisition of higher margin land and cost reductions in the
bullding process Much of the housing market commentary wntten
above also applies to Taylor Wimpey The major difference between
the two companies’ strategies 1s that whilst Bellway 1s tooking to
expand its volumes (albert from a much lower base), Taylor Wimpey
1s aiming to return significant amounts of cash, through dividends, to
shareholders This provides a very attractive prospective yield for
investars As noted later in the report our position in Taylor Wimpey
has been sold due to size considerations

AA 15 the UK's leading provider of roadside assistance !t also
provides insurance broking and financial services AA s a very strong
business with fantastic brand recognition, imited competition, strong
pricing power and good cash generation AA was floated in June
2014 and a key attraction was the ncoming management team This
was led by Bob McKenzie whose career has spanned BTR, Hanson,
Sea Contaners, Green Flag and more recently Northgate, 1n which
the Company has a holding AA floated with a highly leveraged
balance sheet but this was understandable given the cash generation
of the business The investment upside was provided by a
combination of a transfer of value from debt to equity as cash
generation was used to pay down debt, planned faster growth of the
core business dnven by investment (n marketing and systems and
cost reduction in back office processes. The share price of AA has
performed very well since IPQ and we have booked substantial
profits on our position
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Howden Joinery 1s a manufacturer and retailer of kitchens in the UK.
From launch in 1990 1t has orgarcally grown to over 590 branches and
taken a sigedficant market share by providing a fust class serace tods
client, the jobbing builder, with keen pnces and excellent stock avalability
The company 1s also very cash generative but in the past this cash has
been consumed by pension and property issues it nhented from its
former parent, MFI However these 1ssues have now been effectvely
worked through and Howden 1s stariing to aggressively raise the dwdend
to shareholders With branch roll-out continuing and the kitchen market
beginning to recover Howden 1s well placed to grow profitability strongly.

e2v Technologies manufactures high technology electronic
components. Although e2v 1s a company with significant technology
and high margins, it has histonically struggled to deliver consistent
growth This led to a below market valuation for the business The
appomtment of a new charman and CEQ has led to a re-focusing of
the business with cost taken out, a new customer-focused approach
and de-cluttening of the orgamisations processes The intial results of
this new approach have been highly encouraging with results for the
last financial year above market expectations lts shares have enjoyed
a significant re-rating and prospects for further growth look strong if
the company continues to deliver on its strategic amns

Principal detractors

Relative

12 month return contribution

% %

Afren -980 -12

Premier Oil -536 07

Betfar' +615 05

Greggs® +1338 04
Moneysupermarket.com? +76.8 04  Unnec

Betfair 1s an online sports book and gaming operator and 1s the
world's largest internet betting exchange The strong share price
perfarmance has prmarily been drven by upwards earnings upgrade
surpnises as heavy investment in its product and marketing has
allowed 1t to take market share after years of decline between 2011
and 2013 Furthermore, the stock has benefitted from a re-rating as
it has successfully de-emphasised its non-regulated earnings,
favounng growth in regulated markets The Company has no holding
tn Betfarr

Greggs i1s a verhically integrated, bakery related retaler After a
difficult period, Greggs has performed well as new management
have driven the proposition from a high street baker to a bakery
food-on-the-go operator with broad appeal in the quick service
sector Like-for-like sales growth has picked up and combined with
lower input costs has meant that earnings growth has been above
market expectations The Company has no holding in Greggs

Moneysupermarket.com Is an operator of finance and travel price
comparison websites It 1s the market leader The share price has
performed well over the last year driven by a re-rating upwards of
comparable internet companies In addition earnings growth has
been strong, driven in part by lugh levels of utihty switching by
consumers The Company has no holding in Moneysupermarket.com

Portfolio Activity

Trading actvity in the portfolic was consistent with an average
holding pernod of four years Turnover was shghily higher than our
typical average due to the high level of M&A and IPO actvity in the
portfolio and does not represent a shift in our approach, which is to
consider our Invesiments as long-term in nature and to avoid

ry turnover The focus has been on adding stocks to the

'Included in the benchmark index up to 31/12/14 but not owned by the Company
{returns shown are those to 31/12/14)
Tncluded in the benchmark index but not ownad by the Company

Afren 15 an international ol and gas production and explorabion
company with its main interests in Nigena. Afren was hit by a number
of problems in the year Firstits CEQ, COO and a number of other
employees were suspended due to the discovery of unauthornsed
payments Subsequently its reserves in Kurdistan were significantly
wnitten down after poor dnlling results Additionally the severe drop
in the ail price affected the cashflows from the core Nigenan
operations which left the company unable to service the debt costs
of the business Afren i1s currently undergoing a significant debt for
equity swap and debt renegotiation, which will substanbally dilute
equity holders We sold our position in Afren in early 2015

Premier Ol 1s an international ol and gas produchon and explorahon
company Like nearly every cther ol and gas company on the stock
market, the last year has been an exceptionally tough one The
collapse in od prices in late 2014 has severely affected the market’s
perceptions of the value of Premier’s ol and gas assets Although
Premier has reasonable levels of debt, the company remains
financially sound The company 1s poised to show good growth In
near-term production from the Solan development in the Nerth Sea in
late 2015 and beyond that from the Catcher development and the
wider North Falklands basin Additionally Premier remains a strong
proxy for the eventual recovery in il prices

portfolio that have good growth prospects, sound financial
charactenstics and strong management, at a valuation level that does
not reflect these strengths Likewise we have been employing strong
sell disciplines to cut out stocks that fail to meet these ¢ritena

In the year we have added a number of new positions to our portfolio
These included -

One Savings Bank (OSB) is one of the new challenger banks that
have emerged post the financial crisis It 1s a specialist lender
focused on selected sub-sectors of the lending market Formed from
the ashes of Kent Reliance Building Society it started trading on

1 February 2011 The business was onginally built by acquisitions of
performing mortgage books and a short duration unsecured
performing consumer loan book of Northern Rock. Since then it has
grown its loan book and profitability rapidly The outlook 1s positive as
competition from capital-constrained large banks has reduced and
credit nsk remains low With strong political wilt for challenger banks
to succeed, the future looks bnght for One Savings Bank.
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SSP s a food and beverage retaler at transport locations globally,
principally arports and railway statons The company runs a
combination of its own brands, such as Upper Crust, to franchise
operations for companies such as Marks and Spencer and
McDenalds Growth dynamics are positive, with drivers including new
transport locations, market share gains at existing sites, increased
passenger numbers and nsing spend per head A further positive 1s
the armval of Kate Swann as CEO In her previous role she had
particular success at furning round and growing WH Smith and her
cost-cuthng skills, attention to detail and returns focus should benefit
SSP greatly

Sanne 15 an independent and requlated provider of cutsourced
specialist corporate and fund admiristration and reporting services to
alternative asset managers, financial institutions and other
orgamisations The speciaism and complexity involved in the service it
provides has histonically allowed it to earn high margins which we
view as sustainable in the mediwm run Qur investment in Sanne
provides exposure to growing regulation in financial services, growth
in alternative investments as an asset class, and continued trend of
outsourcing back office functions The company also benefits from

a strong balance sheet, a shicky and diversified client base (90% of
revenues are recurring) and plenty of M&A opportunities as larger
administrators sell off non-core assets

Cairn Energy 1s an internatronal oil and gas explerabon and
productton company Although the recent collapse in ol prices has
had a severe detrimental impact on the sector, Cairn benefits from a
very strong balance sheet with a substantial net cash position
Current production 1s mimimal, which means low ol prices today are
not of huge relevance to Carn However it does have signficant
developments in the Kraken and Catcher fields in the North Sea
which come on stream from 2017 and will provide substantial
production and cash flow. An additienal upside 1s provided by
exposure to exciting oil exploration actmtly in offshore Senegal and
the resolution of Cairn's dispute with Indian tax authoritres

S5QS Software 15 a specialist independent computer software
testing company based in Germany Hs services are focused on
mitigating and managing any technological and commeraal nsks that
might anse through the course of the software development iifecycle
Our investment in SOS should provide exposure to growth “software
as service® and mobile app development as device prolferation
increases complexity in software development. Recent acquisihons

in the US, in conjunction with a potent mix of organic top line growth
and margin expansion, should provide double-digit earnings growth
over 3 to 5 years and we don't think the current valuation fully
reflects this Furthermore, the company operates in a consolidating
industry and lacks sell-side broker coverage, which we think are
positive catalysts for the stock

Exova provides materal testing, calibration and advisory services

1t was a former division of Bodyccte and was acquired by the private
equity operation CD&R in 2008 The company was IPO'd in April
2014 Although we liked the growth dynamics of the business and
quality of the management team, we felt the valuahon placed on the
company at that ime was too high A subsequent share price fall
gave us an opportunity to invest in the business at a more
appropriate valuation Exova operates in an attractive market
segment with increasing regulation driving faster than economic
growth The company plans to supplement this organic growth
through bolt-on acquisitions funded from cashflow Although in the
short term growth 15 being constrained by an exposure to ol and gas
markets, the long-term prospects are favourable

In addition to the companies mentioned above, we invested in a
number of IPOs (initial public offerings) in the year These included
— Aldemore Group and Virgtn Money, UK challenger banks, DFS and
SCS, the furniture retailers, Eurocell, a building products group
specialising in PVYC window, door and roofline products, Marshall
Motors, a UK car retaller, and Quantum Pharmaceuticals, a
pharmaceuticals company specialising in the provision of unhcensed
and special obtain products

To balance the additions to our portfolio, we have disposed of
positions in comparnes which we felt were set for poor price
performance We disposed of our holding in Brammer, the industnal
products distributor, where the company has suffered from weak UK
and European end markets and margins have been under pressure
from competitive pricing conditions We also disposed of our holding
in Go-Ahead, the bus and rail company, where after the award of the
Greater Thameslink franchise, the shares reached what we felt was
farr value We also sold our pesitions in Ashtead, the plant hire
business, Dixons Carphone, the electrical products and mobile phone
retasler, and Taylor Wimpey, the UK housebuilder All these companies
had reached the FTSE 100 and our policy is to sell holdings when
companies reach this Index This 1s a good discipline to apply as it
represents a natural cut-off point given the Company i1s mandated to
invest in ‘smaller’ companies We invested in all these companies
when they were much smaller entibies and have made substantal
profits aver the period in which we have held them

We benefited from an increased level of takeover activity in the year
Eight portfolio companies receved agreed bids The clear similanty in
these bids was the nature of the buyers, with seven of the exght
acquirers being overseas corporates This reflects the open nature of
the UK market, the strength of global corporate balance sheets and
the low cost of debt. Within our portfolio, takeover bids were receved
for Asian Plantations, a palm oil producer, from Felda, CSR, a
semiconductor supplier, from Qualcomm, Domino Printing, industnal
printing equipment, from Brother International, Hyder Consulting, an
international engineering consultancy, from Arcadis, Kentz, an ail
services company, from SNC Lavalin, Mecom, a European printed
media group, from Peers Group, Spint Pub Company, an operator of
managed and tenanted pubs, from Greene King, and Synergy Health,
a healthcare services group, from Stens Corporation
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Portfolio Qutlook

The following table shows the Company’s key stock positions verses
the Nurmis Smaller Companies Index {excluding investment
companies) at the end of May 2015

Index Active
Top ten active positions at Holding Weight Welght
31 May 2015 % % %
Bellway 34 - 34
e2v Techneologies 29 03 26
Howden Joinery 24 - 24
Intermediate Capital 21 - 21
Informa 21 - 21
Speciris 19 - 19
Victrex 19 - 19
WS Atkins 19 - 19
Playtech 17 - 17
Renishaw 17 - 17

A brief desenption of the largest active positions (excluding Bellway,
e2v Technologies and Howden Joinery which are covered earlier)
follows

Intermediate Capital s an alternative finance provider and asset
manager Intermediate Capital 1s a leading provider of mezzanine
finance to LBO markets It also owns a highly successful mezzanine,
property lending and credit fund management operation Its portfolio
of investments are performing well but the pnmary growth engine of
the business s the fund management operation where it 1s having
real success in growing assets due to the strength of its performance,
the quality of the team and underlytng demand for its product in an
income-hungry world Additonally the management are targeting a
meaningful increase in the company's return on equity by returning
substantial surplus capital

Informa is a leading business-to-business information group Its
actwities include the provision of academic journals, books, data
services, trade exhibitions and conferences The company produced
a very resihent profit performance dunng the downturn, helped by
aggressive cost cutting Addihonally the balance sheet has been
strengthened and cash generation has been strong A new CEO has
been appointed and he has significantly strengthened the
management team across the business The aim 15 to re-invest in the
areas that have struggled to deliver growth whilst expanding the fast
growing exhibitions dwision by acquisihon If faster growth can be
driven from a collection of huigh quality assets then the share price
has scope to re-rate upwards

Spectns manufactures, designs and markets products for the
electronic control and process instrumentatton sectors The company
has a number of subsidianes which tend to be market leaders in
global market niches Cash generation 1s sound, the management
team 1s well respected and the balance sheet 1s strong Profit growth
in 2013 and 2014 has been muted due to softness in end markets
and sterling strength but longer term the company 15 well positioned
for growth, especially if it deploys its balance sheet on acquisitions

Victrex 1s a manutacturer of a speciality thermoplastic PEEK [t 1s
the world leader in its field with a dominant market share. Victrex has
shown consistent long-term growth as demand for PEEK has grown
as customers lock to replace metals with ighter plastics with similar
thermal properties Thus 1s best evidenced by the aerospace industry,
where the most technologically advanced large commercial jet in the
world, the Boeing 787, uses one tonne of PEEK per plane compared
to mimimal use in jets of a decade ago Although demand for PEEK
15 subject to the vaganes of the economic cycle, longer term its use
will continue to increase and drive Victrex's profitability upwards
Additionally Victrex has developed a very successful medical
business with PEEK used particularly in spinal and arthroscopy
operations, which 1s growing independent of the economic cycle
Victrex has recently expanded capacity as there are significant
opportuntties for growth in the medical, oil and gas, aerospace and
smartphone markets

WS Atkins is an international engineering consultant, with
operations principally in the UK, USA, Middle East and Asia. A new
management team has been re-structunng the company with low
margn actvities sold and operations rationalised With this re-
structuning mostly completed, the company is starting to see growth
in profitability and future prospects look strong The company also
enjoys a cash-nch balance sheet and 15 looking to deploy this on
acquisitions that will augment organic growth

Playtech 15 one of the world’s largest gaming and sports betting
software suppliers The company provides white label software
products for online and mobile, casino, poker, bingo, sports betting
and hve dealer games and has most recently made acquisitions in
the spread betting market. Ptaytech benefits from operating in an
industry with high barners to entry and strong supplier power
{platform rigrations are very nsky for online B2C businesses) This
in conjunchon with long-term contracts (5-7 years and increasing)
and relatively low levels of competihon makes the company well
placed to benefit from global growth in online gaming We expect
returns from Playtech to be dnven by continued strong earnings
momentum and a growing dvidend However, we believe the greatest
returns should be made from a market re-rating, driven pnmanly by
an increase n the proportion of regulated earnings and more credit
given for its high, sustainable and cash-backed margins

Renishaw designs, develops and manufactures high technology
precision measuning and calibrahion equipment The business is a
global leader in its field with strong patent protection The company
invests heavily in research and development to mamntain its market
leading technological positon Over the medium term organic growth
has been one of the strongest in the capital goods sector More
recently Renishaw has enjoyed excephional growth driven by the
investment by its Asian customers in modernising therr production
facilties Much of this growth 1s rumoured to be driven by the
smartphone supply chain Although this growth may slow in the near
term, Renishaw, with a very strong balance sheet and a well invested
production base, is superbly positioned for the long term
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Market Outlook

The year under review has been a positive one for equity markets
The global macro-economic environment has been gradually gething
better with world GDP forecast to show good growth in the current
year with some modest acceleration in 2016

The UK economy has shown steady progress The housing market has

remained strong, with a nse in pnces and sold transaction levels, aided
by low interest rates and Government inihatives The unemployment
rate has fallen and there are signs that wage inflation 1s starting to nse
The unexpected majority that the Conservative government achieved
also removed uncertainty about short-term polibical direction n the UK.
All these factors are boosting consumer confidence. There remains
the strong possibility of a nse in interest rates, but with inflation
remaining low, the timing of the move has been pushed back to a
consensus view of early 2016 However, as it curtently stands, rates
are expected to nse slowly and to levels well below histonc levels,
which should allow the UK economic recovery to continue

After the nse in the past few years, stock market valuations are now
at around long-run histenc averages Corporate profitability has
proved robust but has not shown much growth in recent years [t is
difficult to see the market making material progress from current
levels without an increase in corporate earmings However, given an
improving economic backdrop, we are hopeful that the outlook for
corporate profitability is improving Mergers and acquisition activity
has been relatively subdued as management teams are unwilling to
take on financial leverage in the face of perceved economic
uncertainty But there are more recent signs, particularly in sectors
such as healthcare, telecoms and technology, that this trend s
reversing An increase in M&A would be helpful for smaller
companies In parhicular as mergers and acquisthon activity tends to
be focused in this area.

In conclusion, the year under review has been an excellent one for
the Company Relative performance was good and our porifolio
companies have, overall, performed robustly Our investments are
generally trading well, soundly financed and attractively valued
Additionally, the small company market continues to throw up
excaiting growth opportunities in which the Company can invest.

Neil Hermon
Fund Manager
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2015 Portfolio
Company Principal activities £'000 %
Bellway house building 20,489 338
e2v Technologies electromic components 17,809 294
Howden Joinery kitchen manufacturer and retatler 14,691 243
Paragon buy to let mortgage provider 14,158 234
Intermedhate Capital mezzamine finance 12,579 208
Informa business to business information 12,423 205
Interserve international contractor 12,090 200
Spectris electronic control and process instrumentation 11,690 193
Victrex speciality chemicals 11,270 1.86
WS Atkins engineering consultancy 11,200 185
10 largest 138,399 2286
NMC Heslth healthcare provider 10,926 180
Northgate commercial vehicle hire 10,387 171
Playtech internet gaming software 10,168 169
Renishaw precision measuring and calibration equipment 10,080 166
Senior aerospace and autornotive products 10,071 166
Essentra speciality plastic producer and distnbution 10,000 165
Climigen' pharmaceuticals 9714 160
Lard afectronic products 8,809 145
Oxford Instruments advanced instrumentation equipment 8771 145
Grainger residential property investor 85681 142
20 largest 235,506 3895
Capital & Regional retai property nvestor 8,239 136
Restaurant Group restaurants 7935 131
Balfour Beatty international contractor 7861 130
Optimal Payments’ onkne money transfer service 7412 122
HellermannTyton cable management solutions 7,392 122
Rotork process control solutions 6,969 115
Ted Baker clothing retailer 6,895 114
NCC IT securtty 6,808 112
Aveva Group design software 6,808 112
LSL Property Services real estate services 6,736 111
30 largest 308961 5100
John Laing infrastructure nvestment 6,286 104
Euromoney Institutional Investor business to business information 6,148 101
Thomas Cook travel and letsure 6,133 101
Jupiter fund Management investment management company 6,084 100
Countrywide real estate services 59592 099
Esure motor and property insurer 5918 098
One Savings Bank banks 5904 097
Spint Pub pub operator 5725 095
Consort Medical heaithcare products 5587 092
SIG builders merchant 55667 092
40 largest 368305 6079
Eurocell buifding products 5566 092
Cineworld cinema operator 5,495 091
Ultra Electronic Holdings spectahsed defence contractor 5,493 091
Tyman building products 5322 088
Synergy Health heaithcare support services 5287 087
Brown (N) Group clothing retaller 5214 086
Crest Nicholson housebuilder 5,150 085
Dechra Pharmaceuticals vetennary pharmaceuticals 5145 085
Hunting oil equipment and services 49928 081
Fidessa financial software 4795 079
50 largest 420,700 6944
Aldermore banks 4799 080
Sanne investment management services 4778 079
St Modwen Properties real estate mvestment and services 4,702 078
Elementis speciality chemicals 4,662 077
CLS real estate investrment and services 4,652 077
Exova matenal testing 4616 076
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2015 Portfolio
Company Principal activites £'000 %
Virgin Money banks 4,567 075
Unite Group student accommodation investor 4,639 075
Volution bulding products 4,466 074
Dunelm homewares retailer 4432 073
60 largest 466,906 7708
Keller ground engineerning services 4,424 072
AA roadside assistance 4,994 071
Vectura respiratory pharmaceuticals 4,094 068
SSP contract catering 3,947 065
EMIS! healthcare IT services 3900 064
Tribal Group education support services and software 38256 063
L ookers automotive retailer 3772 062
Tarsus Group exhibition organiser 3,765 062
DFS furniture retater 3672 061
Premier Gil ol and gas exploration and production 3672 061
70 largest 506,27 1 8357
Urban & Civic real estate mvestment and services 3,584 0bh9
Quantum Pharma' specialty pharmaceuticals 3578 0569
Servelec healthcare software provider 3,564 0b9
Hays business traimng and employment agencies 35853 0569
ITE Group extibition organtser 3,505 058
Carn Energy o and gas exploration and production 3477 057
Anite telecom software 3474 057
Quintain Estates real estate mvestment and services 3472 057
Chime Communications media agencies 3249 0b4
Xaar electronic equipment 3171 052
80 largest 540,898 8928
RWS' patent translation services 3,168 052
Rathbone Brothers private chent asset management 3,140 0562
John Menzies news distnbutor and aviation services 3,120 052
Safestore Holdings self storage operator 3,000 050
Speedy Hire tool and plant hire 297 049
Safestyle! window replacement retarler 2840 049
Marshall Motor! automotive retailer 2,936 048
Costain contractor 2,880 048
5085 Software’ software testing 2876 047
WYG' engineerng consultancy 2850 047
S0 1argest 570,779 9429
Polypipe building products 25826 047
Sherborne Investors speciality finance 2793 0486
DX Group' logistics and parcel distrbution 2640 044
Carpetnght carpet retailer 2,480 041
Fenner industrial engineerng 2483 041
Abcam’ internet retaler of antbodies 2,383 039
UTV Media radio and TV broadcaster 2364 039
Synthomer spectalty chemcals 2,109 035
Next Fifteen Communications! PR and med:a services 2,024 033
SCS furmiture retaler 1,859 031
100 largest 594,750 0818
RM education software and services 1,827 030
Severfield industrial engineening 1809 030
Ebiqurty’ media agency 1,634 027
Faroe Petroleum’ ol and gas exploration and production 1,483 024
Honzen Discovery’ biotachnology research services 1,424 024
Koovs' oniine fashion retaier 911 015
Digital Barriers® digrtal security 645 o
Rockhopper Exploration’ oil and gas explorer 5560 009
Scapa' technical tapes 384 006
1SG! contractor 359 006
Total equity investments 605,776 10000

There were no converhble or fixed interest secunties at 31 May 2015 (2014 none)

1 gquoted on the Alternative investment Market

15
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Directors
The Directors appointed to the Board at the date of this report are

Jamie Cayzer-Colvin

Position Chairman of the Board

Date of appointment 13 May 2011 (Charrman in September 2011)
Jamie 15 an execubve Director of Caledoma Investments plc and
among other appointments, he 1s a Director of Polar Capital Holdings
plc, plus a number of unquoted companies and chanties

Keith Percy

Position' Director (Serior Independent Director)

Date of appointment. 21 July 2006

Keith 1s chairman of Brunner Investment Trust plc and a Director of
JPMorgan Japanese Investment Trust plc and Standard Life Equity
Income Trust plc

David Lamb

Position Director

Date of appointment 1 August 2013

Dawvid 1s Managing Director of St James's Place plc He 1s a Charrman
of the Investment Committee and a Trustee of the St James's Place
Foundation Dawid is also a Director of the Wealth Management
Association and a Governor of the University of the West of England

Mary Ann Sieghart

Position Director

Date of appointment 18 July 2008

Mary Ann was assistant editor of The Times from 1998 to 2007

She 15 also a former city editor and Lex columnist. She charrs the
Social Market Foundation, sits on the council of Tate Modern and the
advisory council of Into University and s a trustee of the Radcliffe
Trust and a non-executive Director of The Merchants Trust plc and
also DLN Digital Limited and the Content Board of Ofcom

She presents occasional programmes on Radio 4

Beatrice Hollond

Position Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

Date of appointment 23 July 2010 (Audit Committee Chairman in
September 2010)

Beatrice 1s Deputy Chairman of Millbank Financral Services Limited,
an independent family office, and Chairman of Millbank Investment
Managers Limited, its investment management subsidiary She

ts Chairman of Keystone Investment Trust plc and a Director of
Templeton Emerging Markets Investment Trust PLC, Oldfield & Co
{London) Limited and on the International Advisory Board of Brown
Advisory Among other appointments she 1s a Trustee of the Esmée
Farrbarn Foundation, Vice-Chairman of The Philanthropy Workshop
(TPW), an Advisory Fellow of Pembroke College, Oxford and charrs
the Investment Committee of its Endowment Fund

All the Directors are independent and all are members of the Management Engagement Committee and the Nomination Committee,

both are chared by Jamte Cayzer-Colvin

Beatnice Hollond charrs the Audit Commitiee, the other members of which are Keith Percy, Mary Ann Sieghart and Dawvd Lamb
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Service Providers

Alternative Investment Fund Manager
Henderson Investment Funds Limited

201 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 3AE

Corporate Secretary

Henderson Secretanal Services Limited
201 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 3AE

Telephone 020 7818 1818

Email trusts@henderson com

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pawilions

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol BSYS 6727

Telephone 0370 707 1057

Depositary and Custodian
HSBC Bank plc

8 Canada Square

London E14 5HQ

Broker

MNumis Securities

The London Stock Exchange Buillding
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 7LT

Independent Audrtors

Chartered Accountants and
Statutory Auditors
PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP

7 More London Riverside
London SE1 2RT

Financial Calendar

Annual results July 2015
Ex-dmdend date 17 September 2015
Dividend record date 18 September 2015
Annual General Meeting® 2 October 2015
Final dvdend payable? 9 October 2015
Half year results January 2016
Interim dmidend payable March 2016
Website

For more information about the Company, wisit the website at
www.hendersonsmallercompanies.com

HGI

HG11s a content platform provided by Henderson that offers online
personahsation where you can “follow” investment experts, topics and
the trusts that are of interest to you 8y creating your HG! profile you
will be updated regularly on the topics that interest you most, bnnging
you closer to Henderson's investment expertise

Scan the OR code or use this
short URL to register for HG
http.//HG) co/tb

Follow Henderson Investment Trusts on Twitter
To get the latest updates follow us
on Twitter @HGiTrusts

Investing

Shares can ke purchased in the market via a stockbroker or
through share dealing platforms They can also be held through
share plans, ISAs or pensions and links to various providers are
included on the website Indwduals holdings shares through
Halfax Share Dealing Limited can write to them at Lovell Park Road,
Leeds LS1 1NS or contact them via telephone 08457 22 55 25,
emall Henderson@halifax co uk or visit their website

www halfax co uk/sharedealing

Potential investors are reminded that the value of investments and
the income from them may go down as well as up and investors
may not recewve back the full amount invested Tax benefits may
vary as a result of statutory changes and their value will depend on
indwidual circumstances

Nominee Share Code

Where natification has been provided in advance, the Company will
arrange for copies of shareholder communtcations to be provided to
the operators of nominee accounts Nominee investors may attend
General Meetings and speak at them when invited to do so by the
Chairman Investors via Halifax Share Dealing receve all shareholder
communicattons and a vohing instruction form 1s provided to faciltate
voting at General Meetings of the Company

1 At the Company's Registered Office at 11.30am
2 Thus dwvidend will be paid to shareholders on the register on 18 September 2015
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Status

The Company 1s an investment company as defined in Section 833
of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act"} and operates as an
investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the Corporation
Tax Act 2010 ("Section 1158, 1s subject to the Listing Rules and 1s
governed by its Articles of Association, amendments to which must
be approved by shareholders by way of a special resolution

The Company i1s not a close company

The Company has obtained approval from HMRC of its status as an
investment trust under Section 1158, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Company has conducted its affairs in compliance with
Section 1158 since approval was granted and intends to continue

to do so The Company 1s liable to corporation tax on its net revenue
profits but 1s exempt from corporation tax on capital gains if it has
complied at all imes with Section 1158

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company relate to the
actvity of investing in the shares of smaller companies that are hsted
{or quoted) in the United Kingdom Although the Company invests
almost entirely in secuntes that are quoted on recogmised markets,
share prices may move rapidly and it may not be possible to realise an
investment at Henderson's assessment of its value The comparies in
which investments are made may operate unsuccessfully, or fait
entirely, such that shareholder value 15 1ost The Company 1s also
exposed to the operational nsk that one or more of its suppliers may
not prowide the required level of service The Board considers regularly
the principal nsks facing the Company in order to miigate them as far
as practicable A fuller descniption of the principal nsks and
uncertainties follows With the assistance of Henderson, the Board has
drawn up a nsk matrix which identifies the key nisks to the Company
The Board policy on nsk management has not matenally changed from
last year The key rnisks fall broadly under the following categones

Investment activity and strategy

An inappropnate nvestment strategy (for example, i terms of asset
allocation or the level of gearng) may lead to underperformance
against the Company's benchmark and the companies in its peer
group, it may also result in the Company's shares trading at a wider
discount to the net asset value per share The Board manages these
nsks by ensuring a diversificabion of investments and a regular review
of the extent of borrowtings Henderson operates in accordance with
investment hmits and restnctions determined by the Board, these
include hmits on the extent to which borrowings may be used The
Board reviews its investment hmits and restnictions regularly and
Henderson confirms its comphance with them each month Henderson
provides the Directors with management information, including
performance data and reports and shareholder analysis The Board
monitors the implementation and results of the investment process
with the Fund Manager, who attends all Board meetings, and reviews
regularly data that monitors nisk factors in respect of the portfolio
The Board reviews investment strategy at each Board meeting

Accounting, legal and regulatory
In order to qualify as an investment trust the Company must comply
with Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 A breach of

Section 1158 could result in the Company losing investment trust
status and, as a consequence, capital gains realised within the
Company's portfalic would be subject to Corporation Tax The
Section 1158 cntenia are montored by Henderson and the results
are reported to the Directors at each Board meeting The Company
must comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 20C6 (*the
Companies Act”), and, as the Company's shares are listed for trading
on the London Stock Exchange, the Company must comply with the
UK Listing Authonity's Listing Rules and Disclosure and
Transparency Rules and the Prospectus Rules (“UKLA Rules")

A breach of the Companies Act could result in the Company and/or
the Directors being fined or becoming the subject of cnminal
proceedings Breach of the UKLA Rules could result in the
suspension of the Company's shares which would in turn lead to a
breach of Sectien 1158 The Board relies on its Company Secretary
and its professional advisers to ensure compliance with the
Companies Act and UKLA Rules

Operational

Disruphion to, or faulure of, Henderson's accounting, dealing or
payment systems or the Custodian's records could prevent the
accurate reporting and monitoring of the Company'’s financial
posihon Henderson has contracted some of its operationat
functions, prnncipally those relating to trade processing, investment
administration and accounting, to BNP Panbas Securihies Services
Details of how the Board monitors the services provided by
Henderson and its other suppliers, and the key elements designed
to provide effective internal control, are explained further in the
internal control section of the Corporate Governance Statement
on page 30

Financial instruments and the management of nsk

By its nature as an investment trust, the Company 1s exposed in
varying degrees to market nsk (compnsing market price nisk, currency
nsk and interest rate nsk), iguidity nsk and credit and counterparty
nsk. An analysis of these financial nsks and the Company's pelicies
for managing them are set outin note 15 on pages 52 to 55

Borrowing

The Company has access to borrowings of up to £60 million,
£20 million of fixed debt represented by the 1ssue of Debenture
Stock and a committed bank facility with National Australia Bank
for £40 million In additton the Company has a small amount of
Preference Stock in1ssue (see page 51 for more details}

Future Developments

The future success of the Company 1s dependent pnmanly on the
performance of its iInvestments, which will to a significant degree
reflect the performance of the stock market and Henderson Although
the Company invests in companies that are listed or quoted in the
United Kingdom, the underying businesses of those companies are
affected by various economic factors, many of an international nature
The Board's intention 1s that the Company will continue to pursue its
investment objective in accordance with its investment policy Further
comment on the outlook for the Company 1s given in the Charrman's
Statement and in the Fund Manager's Review
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Key Performance Indicators (*KPls")

In order to measure the success of the Company in meeting its
objective and to evaluate the performance of Henderson, the
Dhrectors take into account the following KPIs The charts and tables
on pages 2, 3 and 7 show how the Company has performed against
these KPls

Performance measured against the benchmark

The Board reviews, at each of ds meetings, the performance of the
portfolio, the net asset value per share (*NAV") and the share price
and compares them with the performance of the Company’s
benchmark

Performance measured against the peer group

The Company 1s included in the AIC’s UK Smaller Compantes sector,
which represents the Company's peer group In addition to
comparnison against the benchmark, the Board also considers the
performance against the peer group

Discount to the net asset value per share

The Board monitors the level of the discount to the NAY at which the
Company's shares trade and reviews the average discount for the
Company's relevant AIC sector {the UK Smaller Companies sector)
The Board considers whether to use share buy-backs to enhance
sharehclder value Shares are only bought back at a pnice below
the prevailing NAV, thereby increasing the NAV for the remaining
shareholders The Company publishes a NAV figure on a daily
basis, through the official newswire of the London Stock Exchange
This figure 1s calculated in accordance with the AIC formula {(and
since 1 June 2008 includes current financial year revenue items)

Ongoing charges

The Board reviews the ongoing charges and moniters the expenses
incurred by the Company For the year ended 31 May 2015 the
Ongoing Charge was 0 46% and 0 88% including performance fee
(2014 0 44% and 0 56% including performance fee)

Corporate Responsibility

Responsible Investment

Henderson 15 responsible for reporting on its work on corporate
governance and corporate responsibility (or social, environmental and
ethical (*SEE") 1ssues) in the companies i which it invests on its
chents’ behalf, across all funds as part of its management duties In
May 2005 Henderson became a founding signatory to the United
Nations Principles for Responsible Investment The Principles,
developed under the auspices of the UN Secretary-General, are a
voluntary and aspirational framework for incorporating environmental,
social and corporate governance (‘ESG") 1ssues into mainstream
investment decision-making and ownership practices

The way companies respond to sustanability and corporate
responsibility can affect thewr business performance, both directly and
indirectly An investee company's policy on soctal responsibility and the
environment 1s considered by Henderson's nsk team but investments
are not ruled out on social and environmental grounds only

Voting Policy and the UK Stewardship Code

Henderson's responsible investment pohicy sets out its approach

to corporate governance and corporate responsibility for all the
companies in which it invests on behalf of its clients and its policy on
proxy voting The policy also sets out how Henderson implements the
Stewardship Code The Company has reviewed the policy and has
delegated responsibility for voting to Henderson The Board receives
regular reporis on the voting undertaken by Henderson on behalf of
the Company The Board and Henderson believe that voting at General
Meetings 1s an important aspect of corporate stewardship and a
means of signalling shareholder views on board policy, practices and
performance Voting recommendations are guided by the best
interests of the investee companies’ shareholders Depending on the
nature of the resolution the Fund Manager will give specific
instructions on voting non-routine and unusual or controversial
resolutions Decisions not to support resolutions and the rationale
therefor are fed back to the investee company pror o voting

Practical difficulties may prevent Hendersan voting in some markets
In particular, vanous factors, including restnictions on dealng and
costs, may inhibit voting 1n some international markets and must be
taken into account.

The Henderson responsible investment policy and further details
of Henderson’s responsible mvestment activities can be found on
the Henderson website, www henderson com

Employees, Social, Community, Human Rights

and Environmental Matters

The Company’s core activities are undertaken by Henderson, which
has implemented environmental management practices, including
systems to hmit the use of non-renewable resources and to minimise
the impact of operatons on the environment, and 1s focused on
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and mimmising waste, where
possible The Company has therefore not reported on these, or social,
community or human nghts issues here, Henderson’s policies are
included in its annual report which can be found on the website
www.henderson com

Henderson's corporate responsibility statement 1s included on the
website detalled above In 2012 1t was granted CarbenNeutral
Company status which it has committed to maintain at least until the
end of 2015

The Company's Annual Report i1s printed on paper produced using
50% recycled post-consumer waste and 50% wood fibre from fully
sustainable forests with certification by the Forest Stewardship
Council, the printing company used is certified as CarbonNeutral®

Board Diversity

The Board comprises five Directors, two of which are female, thus
40% of the Board The Directors' appointment to the Board was
based on therr skills and expenence More information on the Board’s
consideration of diversity 1s given in the Corporate Governance
Statement. The Company has no employees and therefore, there 1s
nothing further to report in respect of gender representation within
the Company

For and on behalf of the Board

&

Jarme Cayzer-Colvin
Chairman
3 August 2015
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Directive ("AIFMD")

Agreed by the European Parllament and the Council of the European
Union and transposed into UK legislation, the AIFMD classifies
certain investment vehicles, including investment companies, as
Alternative Investment Funds ("AIFs") and requires them to appoint
an Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM”) and depositary

to manage and oversee the operations of the investment vehicle

The Board of the Company retains responsibility for strategy,
operations and compliance and the Directors retain a fiduciary duty
to shareholders

Association of Investment Companies (“AIC™)

The Company 1s a member of the AIC which 15 the trade body for
investment companies and represents the industry in retation to
vanious matters which impact the regulation of such entities

Benchmark

An index against which performance 1s compared For the
Company this 1s the Numis Smaller Companies Index (excluding
investment companies)

Custodian

The custodian 1s responsible for ensuring the safe custody of the
Company's assets and that all transactions in the underying holdings
are transacted in an accurate and timely manner

Depositary

With effect from 22 July 2014 all AlFs were required to appoint a
Depositary who has responsibility for overseeing the operations of
the Company including safekeeping, cash monitonng and venfication
of ownership and valuation and 1s responsible for the appointment of
a Custodian The Depositary 1s strictly hable for the loss of any
investments or other assets in its custody unless it has notified that it
ts has discharged its hability in certain markets The Depositary has
confirmed that it has not discharged habifity in relation to any of the
Company's assets

Derivative

A contract between two or more parties in refation to an underlying
secunty The value of a dervative will fluctuate in accordance with
the value of the secunty and 1s a form of geanng as the fluctuations
in value are usually greater than the fluctuations in the undertying
secunty's value Examples of denvatives are put and call options,
swap contracts, futures and contracts for difference Foreign
exchange, interest rates and commodities may also be fraded using
derivative contracts

-l

Dividend Dates

When declared or recommended, each dwidend will have three key
dates applied to it. The payment date 1s the date on which
shareholders will recewve therr dividend, erther by BACS transfer or by
receipt of a dwidend cheque The record date applied to the dwvidend
15 used as a cut-off for the Company's Registrars to know which
shareholders should be paid a dvidend Cnly shareholders on the
register of members at the close of business on the record date will
recewve the dvidend The ex-diwvdend date 1s the business day before
the record date and 15 the date upon which the Company's net asset
value will be disclosed ex-dividend

Gearing

The gearing percentage reflects the amount of borrowings (e bank
loans or overdrafts) the Company has used to invest in the market
and also takes into account the exposure to hedging and denvatives
which have a gearing effect. This ftgure indicates the extra amount
by which shareholders’ funds would move if the Company's
investments were to nse or fall This 1s calculated by taking the
difference between quoted and unquoted investments and equity
shareholders' funds divided by equity shareholders’ funds and
multiplied by 100

Investment Trusts

Investment trusts are public imited companies, listed on the London
Stock Exchange, which provide shareholders with a professionally
managed portfolio of investments Investment trusts are exempt from
tax on the capital gains ansing on therr investments subject to
meeting certain cntena. Income, net of expenses and tax, ts
substantially distnibuted to shareholders Investment trusts are also
known as investment comparues, although the tax legislation retains
the reference to investment trusts

Liquidity

In the context of the liquidity of shares in the stock market, this refers
to the avaulability of buyers in the market for the share in question
Where the market in a particular share 1s descnbed as iquid, that
share will be in demand and holders wishing to sell their shares
should find ready buyers Conversely, where the market in a share 13
ilhquid the difficulty of finding a buyer will tend to depress the price
that might be negotiated for a sale

Market Capitalisation (“Market Cap”)

The market value of a company, calculated by multiplying the
rud-market price per share by the number of shares in 1ssue
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Net Asset Value (“NAV”") per Ordinary Share

The value of the Company’s assets (e mvestments and cash held)
less any habiibes (1e bank barrowings and debt securities) for which
the Company is responsible, dvided by the number of shares in
issue The aggregate NAV s also referred to as shareholders’ funds
on the balance sheet The NAV is published daly

Ongoing Charge

The ongoing charge reflects those expenses of a type which are
likely to recur in the foreseeable future, whether charged to capital
or revenue, and which relate to the operation of the Company as

a collective fund, excluding the costs of acquisition or disposal of
investments, financing charges and gains or losses ansing on
investments The ongoing charge s based on actual costs mcurred
in the year as being the best estimate of future costs, excluding
any performance fees n accordance with the AIC methodology

Premium/Discount

The amount by which the market pnce per share of an investment
trust s either higher {premium) or lower (discount) than the NAV
per share, expressed as a percentage of the NAV per share.

Total Return Performance

This 1s the return on the share price or NAV taking into account both
the nise and fall of share prices and the dwidends and interest paid to
shareholders Any dvidends receved by a shareholder are assumed
to have been reinvested in either addibonal shares (for share pnice
total return) or the Company's assets (for NAV total return)

Yield

The annual dvidend expressed as a percentage of the share price

2
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The Directors present the audited financial statements of the
Company and thetr report for the year from 1 June 2014 to 31 May
2015 The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple (the
“Company”) (registered in England & Wales on 16 December 1887
with company registration number 25526) was active throughout
the year under review and was not dormant.

Directors’ Remuneration and Shareholdings

The Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 26 and 27 prowides
information on the remuneration and share interests of the Directors

Directors' Conflicts of Interest

The Company's Articles of Association permit the Beard to consider
and, if it sees fit, to authonse situations where a Director has an
interest that cenflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests of the
Company (*situational conflicts”) The Board has a formal system in
place for Directors ta declare situational conflicts to be considered for
authonisation by those Directors who have no interest in the matter
being considered In deciding whether to authonse a sttuational
conflict, the non-conflicted Directors must act honestly and in good
farth with a view to the best interests of the Company and they may
impose imits or conditions when giving the authonisation, or
subsequently, if they think this 1s appropnate. Any situational conflicts
considered, and any authonsations given, are recorded in the relevant
meetings' minutes and the regester of interests The prescribed
procedures have been followed in deciding whether, and on what
terms, to authonse situattonal conflicts and the Board believes that the
systems it has in place for reporting and considening situational
conflicts continues to operate effectively

Directors' Insurance and Indemnity

Directors’ and officers’ hability insurance cover s in place in respect of
the Directors The Company's Articles of Association provide, subject
to the provisions of UK legislation, an indemnity out of the assets of
the Company for every Director or other officer of the Company
against any liability which he or she may incur as a Director or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings (whether civil or
cnminal) in which judgement is given in his or her favour, or he or she
I1s acquitted, or in connection with any apphcation under the
Companies Act 2006 in which he or she I1s granted relief by the court

Donations

During the year the Company made charitable donations totalling
£5,000 (2014 £5,000) No political donations were made (2014 Snil)

The Board supports a number of charities, all of which are personally
selected on an annual basis by the Directors These charities span a
vanety of different causes including further education, working with
under privileged and deprived children and young people, motor
neurone disease and the rehabilitation of prisoners

Related Party Transactions

The Company's transactions with related parties in the year were
with the Directors and Henderson There have been no matenal

transactions between the Company and its Directors during the
year and the only amounts paid to them were in respect of
expenses and remuneration for which there were no outstanding
amounts payable at the year end Directors' shareholdings are
disclosed on page 26

In relation to the provision of services by Henderson, other than
tees payable by the Company in the ordinary course of business
and the provision of sales and marketing services there have been
no matenal transactions with Henderson affecting the financial
position of the Company during the year under review More details
on transactions with Henderson, including amounts outstanding at
the year end, are given in note 21 on page 57

Share Capital

The Company's share capital comprises

Ordinary shares of 25p nominal value each (“shares”)

The voting nghts of the shares on a poll are one vote for each share
held At 31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014 the number of shares in
1ssue, and thus the number of voting nghts, was 74,701,796

This represents 99 98% of the Company’s share capital

Preference Stock units of £1 each (“preference stock units™)
Preference stockholders have no rights to attend and vote at General
Meetings (except where the dividend 1s six months in arrears oron a
resolution to wind up the Company) At 31 May 2015 and 31 May
2014 there were 4,257 preference stock units in 1ssue

This represents 0 0206 of the Company’s share capital

There are no restrictions on the transfer of the Company’s share
capital and there are no shares or stock which carry specific nghts
with regards to control of the Company

The Directors seek annual authonty from shareholders to aflot new
ordinary shares, to dis-apply the pre-emption nghts of existing
shareholders and to buy back for cancellation or to be held in
treasury the Company's ordinary shares The Company's Articles of
Association permit the Company to purchase its own shares and to
fund such purchases from its accumulated realised capital reserves

At the Annual General Meeting in October 2014 a special resolution
was passed givng the Company authonty, until the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting in 2015, to make market purchases for
canceflation of the Company’s own ordinary shares up to a maximum of
11,197,799 shares (being 14 93% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital
as at 3 October 2014) In the period from 31 May 2015 to 3 August
2015 the Company did not buy back any ordinary shares There
remained 11,197,799 ordinary shares available within the buy-back
authonty granted in 2014 A fresh buy-back authonty will be sought at
the Annual General Meeting in October Shares are not bought back
unless the result 1s an increase in the NAV per ordinary share

The Company also seeks annual authonity to buy back preference
stock units No preference stock units were bought back during the
year A fresh buy-back authonty will be sought at the Annual General
Meeting in October Further details of the preference stock units are
given in note 14 on page 51
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Holdings in the Company'’s Shares

Declarations of interests in the voting nghts of the Company as at
31 May 2015 in accordance with the UK Listing Authorty's
Cisclosure and Transparency Rules were as follows

Number of

ordinary % of

shares hetd | voting nghts

Lazard Asset Management LLC 6,093,799 816
Standard Life Investments 5,054,695 676
East Riding of Yorkshire Council 4454111 Ha6
1607 Capital Partners LLC 3,710,573 497
Newton Investment Management Ltd | 3,697,223 494
Royal London Asset Management Ltd 3,691,666 493
Prudential plc Group of Companies 28978564 3.87

Since the year end Standard Life Investments have notified that their
holding 1s now 4,352,074 (5 82%) and Royal London Asset
Management Ltd have notified that their holding 15 now 2,893,256
(3879%) There have been no further changes notified in the penod
to 3 August 2015

The Board is aware that, as at 31 May 2015, 3 54% of the 1ssued
ordinary shares are held on behalf of participants in Halifax Share
Dealing products run by Halifax Share Dealing Limited (*HSDL")

In accordance with the arrangements made between HSDL and
Henderson, the participants in this scheme are given the opportunity
to instruct HSDUs nominee company to exercise the voting nghts
appertaining to therr shares in respect of all General Meetings of
the Company

Going Concern

The assets of the Company consist almost entirely of securities that
are listed (or quoted on AIM) and accordingly the Directors believe
that the Company has adequate financial resources to meet its
labilibes and continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future For these reasons, the Directors believe that it 1s appropnate
to continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the
financial statements In reviewing the position as at the date of this
report, the Board has considered “Going Concern and Liquidity Risk
Guidance for Directors of UK Companies 2008” published by the
Financial Reperting Council

Life of the Company

The Board announced on 27 September 2002 that it proposed to
intraduce regular continuation votes for the Company A continuation
vote was put to the Annual Generat Meetings of the Company held in
2004, 2007, 2010 and 2013 and will be at every subsequent third
Annual General Meeting In the event of the shareholders in General
Meeting voting against the continuation of the Company, the
Dwectors would expect to convene a further General Meeting, as
soon as practicable, at which proposals to iquidate, reorganise or
reconstruct the Company would be put forward

Annual General Meeting (‘AGM")

The AGM will be held on Fnday 2 October 2015 at 1130 am at the
Company's reqistered office The Notice and detalls of the
resolutions to be put at the AGM are contained in the circular being
sent to shareholders with this report.

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 28 to 31
torms part of the Report of the Directors

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure

of Information to the Auditors

Each of the Directors who were members of the Board at the date
of approval of this report confirms that to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, there 15 no information relevant to the
preparation of the Annual Report which the Company’s Auditors 1s
unaware and he or she has taken all the steps a Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's Auditors 1s aware of
that mformation

Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions

As an externally managed investment trust company, the Company
has no greenhouse gas emissions to report from its operations for
the year to 31 May 2015 (2014 same), nor does it have
responsibility for any other emissions producing sources under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Reports)
Regulattons 2013

Listing Rule 9.8.4

Listing Rule 9 8 4 requires the Company to include certain
infermation in a single identifiable section of the Annual Report or
a cross reference table indicating where the information is set out
The Directors confirm that there are no disclosures to be made in
this regard

By order of the Board

Henderson $ecretanal Services Limited
Corporate Secretary
3 August 20156




The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc

Annual Report 20156

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
(which must be farr, balanced and understandable), the Directars’
Remuneratton Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Company's financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") as adopted by the European
Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they gwe a true
and farr view of the state of affarrs of the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Company for that year In prepanng these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

= state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements, and

= prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless
it 1s inappropniate to presume that the Company will continue in
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and

other irregulanties

The Directors consider that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1s
faur, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s perfermance,
business model and strategy

Statement under DTR 4.1.12

Each of the Directors, who are listed on page 16, confirms that, to
the best of his or her knowledge

* the financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European Union on a going concern
basis, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilites, financial
position and profit of the Company, and

» the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the posihion of the Company,
together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties
that it faces

For and on behalif of the Board

 me——

Jamie Cayzer-Colvin
Charrman
3 August 2015

The financial statements are published on
www hendersonsmallercompanies.com which 1s a website
maintamned by Henderson

The maintenance and integnty of the website is the responsibility
of Henderson, the work carned out by the Auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the

Auditors accept no respensibility for any changes that may have
occurred 1o the Annual Report since it was initally presented on
the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdictions
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

This report 1s submitted n accordance with Schedule 8 of The Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 as amended in August 2013 (the ‘Regulations®)
The report also meets the relevant requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 (the "Act") and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authonty and descnbes how the Board has applied the principles
relating to Directors’ remuneration As required by section 439 of
the Act, an ordinary resolution to approve the report will be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) on 2 October 2015 The
Company's remuneration policy was approved by shareholders

at the AGM in 2014 in accordance with section 439A of the Act.
No changes to the policy are currently proposed

The Company's Auditors are required to report on certain information
contained within this report, where information set out below has
been audited it 15 indicated as such

All Directors are non-executive and the Company has no chLef
executive officer or employees, as such some of the reporting
requirements contained in the Regulations are nat applicable and havé
not been reported on, ncluding the requirement for a future policy table
and an lllustrative representation of the level of remuneration that could
be receved by each indvidual Director It 1s believed that all relevant
information 1s disclosed within this report sn an approprate format.

~y

The Board as a whole considers Directors' remuneration Therefore, the
Board has not appointed a Remuneration Committee to consider such
matters The Board has not been prowided with adwice or services by
any person in respect of its consideration of the Directors' remuneration
{although the Directors review annually the fees paid to the boards of
drectors of other comparable investment trust companies)

Remuneration Policy

The Board consists entirely of non-executive Directors who meet at
least five times a year to deal with the mportant aspects of the
Company's affars New Directors are appointed with the expectation
that they will serve for a mimmum period of three years Drrectors'
appontments are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the
Board as a whole None of the Directors has a contract of service or a
contract for services and a Director may resign by notice n writing to
the Board at any time, there are no set notice penods

The Company’s policy 1s for the Directors to be remunerated 1n the form
of fees, payable quarterly in arrears, to the Director personally or to a
third party specified by him or her There are no long-term incentve
schemes and the fees are not specifically related to the Drectors'
performance, etther indmdually or collectively

The Company's policy 1s that the fees payable to the Directors should
reflect the time spent by the Board on the Company’s affarrs and the
responsibilities borne by the Directors and should be sufficient to
promote the long-term success of the company The policy is for the
Chairman of the Board and the Charrman of the Audit Committee to be
paid tigher fees than the other Directors in recognition of their more
onerous roles The policy 1s to review the fee rates annually, although
such review will not necessanly result in any change to them The

Company's Articles of Association imit the fees payable to the Directors

to £200,000 per annum

Annual Statement

As Chairman, Jamie Cayzer-Colvin reports that there have been no
changes in fees for the year ended 31 May 2015 However,
following an annual review of fees in March 2015, Directors' fees
will be increased with effect from 1 June 2015 These increases
were made after consideration of the fees paid to other investment
trusts in the sector of an equivalent size and also in relation to the
fees paid to directors of other Henderson managed trusts These
increases ensure the Directors’ are properly remunerated for their
services to the Company and that the Company can remain
competitive when seeking new Directors There have been no other
major decisions on Directors' remuneration or any other changes to
remuneration in the year under review

Annual Report on Remuneration
Directors’ interests in shares (audited)

Qrdinary shares of 25p
31 May 2015 1 June 2014
Jamie Cayzer-Colvin 12,000 12,000
Beatnce Hollond 5,700 5,700
David Lamb 4,143 2485
Keith Percy 5,880 5980
Mary Ann Sieghart 4,448 2,782

No Director had an interest in the Debenture Stock or Preference
Stock of the Company

The interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company
at the beginning and end of the financial year are shown in the above
table. There have been no changes to any of the Directors’ holdings in
the penod 31 May to 3 August 2015
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Performance

The graph compares the mid-market pnce of the Company’s ordinary
shares over the six year peniod ended 31 May 2015 with the return
from the Nurms Smaller Companies Index {excluding investment
companies) on a total return basis in sterting terms (“Index”) over the
same pernod

Directors’ Fees and Expenses (audited)
The fees and expenses paid to the Directors who served duning the years ended 31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014 were as follows

2015 2014 2015 2014
Total salary and Total salary and Expenses and Expenses and 2015 2014
fees fees taxable benefits taxable benaefits Tota! Tota!
£ ] £ £ £ e
Jamie Cayzer-Colvin' 30,000 31,208 - 36 30,000 31,244
Beatrnce Hollond? 24,000 24042 - - 24,000 24,042
James Nelson® - 7,886 - - - 7,886
Dawid Lamb?* 20,000 17,375 - - 20,000 17,375
Keith Percy 20,000 20,375 94 - 20,094 20,375
Mary Ann Sieghart 20,000 20,375 - - 20,000 20,375
Total 114,000 121,261 94 36 114,094 121,297

Notes

The table above omits other columns get out in the relevant regu'ations because no payments of other types such as performance related pay, vesting performance related pay
and penaion related benefits were made

1 Chairman and highest paid Director

2 Chairman of the Audit Committea

3 Ceased to be a Director on 4 October 2013

4 Appointed a Director on 1 August 2013

No other remuneration or compensation was paid or payable by the Company dunng the year to any of the cument or former Directors or third
partes specified by any of them

Since 1 June 2015 the fees payable to the Directors are as follows {previous rates are shown in brackets) Chawrman £34,000 {£30,000),
Audit Committee Chairman £27,000 {(£24,000) and Director £23,000 (£20,000)

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay Statement of Voting at AGM
In order to show the relative importance of spend on pay, the table At the 2014 AGM 42,807,959 votes (99 549%) were receved voling
below sets out the total level of remuneration compared to the for the resolution seeking approval of the Directors' Remuneration
distnbutions paid to shareholders by way of dvdends There were no Report, 126,937 (0 30%) were against, 68,688 (0 16%) were
share buy-backs dunng the year There were no other significant discretionary and 217,775 were withheld, the percentage of votes
distnbutions, payments or cther uses of the Company's profit or cash excludes votes withheld In relation to the approval of the
flow deemed to assist in the understanding of the relative importance remuneration policy, 42,781,085 votes (99 50%) were recewed
of spend on pay voting for the resclution, 163,253 (0 38%) were aganst, 53,268
{0 129) were discretionary and 223,745 were withheld
2015 2014 Change
£ £ £  Forand on behalf of the Board
Total remuneration 114,094 121,297 (7,203)
Ordinary dmdends pad @g—-—
dunng the year 10,084,742 | 8,217,197 | 1,867,545 Jatie Cayzer-Cohvin
Chairman
3 August 2015
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Corporate Governance Statement

Applicable Corporate Governance Codes

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the governance of the
Company's affairs As an investment company, the Company’s
day-to-day responsibiliies are delegated to third parties, the
Company has no employees and the Directors are all non-executive
Therefore not all the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the ‘UK Code") 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council
{*FRC") are directly applicable to the Company The Board has
therefore considered the pnnciples and recommendations of the
Code of Corporate Governance published by the Association of
investment Companies in February 2013 (the "AIC Code") by
reference to the AIC Corporate Governance Guide for Investment
Companies (the "AIC Guide®) The AIC Code, as explained by the AIC
Guide, addresses all the applicable principles set out in the UK Code
as well as setting out additional principles and recommendations on
1ssues that are of specific relevance to the Company The FRC has
confirmed that by following the AIC Guide, boards of investment
companies should fully meet therr obhgations in refation to the UK
Code and paragraph 9 86 of the Listing Rules

The Board has noted that the FRC and the AIC have 1ssued revised
Codes which the Company will be required to report against next year

Copies of the AIC Code, the AIC Guide and the UK Code can be
found on the respective organisations’ websites www theaic co uk
and www frc.org uk.

Statement of Compliance

The Directors believe that the Company has comphed with the
recormmendations of the AIC Code that are applicable to smaller
companies (those below the FTSE 350) duning the year under review
and up to the date of this report and thereby the prowisions of the UK
Code except as set out below

The UK Code includes prowsions relating to
= the rote of the chief executive,
= executive directors’ remuneration, and

= the need for an internal audit function

For the reasons set out in the AIC Guide, and as explained in the UK
Code, the Board constders these provisions are not relevant to the
position of the Company as it 1s an externally managed investment
company In particular, all of the Company's day to day management and
administrative functions are outsourced to third partes As a resutt, the
Company has no executive directors, employees or internal operations

The Board

The Board 1s collectively responsible for the success of the Company its
role 1s to provide entrepreneunal leadership within a framework of
prudent and effective controls that enable nsk to be assessed and |
managed The Board is responsible for setting the Company’s standasds
and values and for ensuring that its obligations to its shareholders and
others are understood and met The Board sets the Company’s strategic
aims (subject to the Company's Articles of Association, and to such

approval of the shareholders in General Meeting as may be required
from time to tme) and ensures that the necessary resources are in place
to enable the Company’s objectives to be met

The Board currently consists of five non-executive Directors, all of

whom the Directors consider to be independent of Hendersen ‘
Therr biographical detalls, set out on page 16, demonstrate a breadth

of investment, commercial and professional expenence with an

international perspective

The Board meets at least five times a year and deals with the
important aspects of the Company's affairs, including the setting of
parameters for and the menitonng of investment strategy and the
review of investment performance The Board sets imits on the size
and concentration of new investments, on any use of denvatives and
on the extent to which borrowings may be used The application of
these and other restrichions, including those which govern the
Company’s tax status as an mvestment trust, are reviewed regularly
at meetings of the Board Henderson takes decistons as to the
purchase and sale of mdwdual investments and 1s responsible for
effecting those decisions on the best avalable terms

The Chairman 1s respensible for leading the Board and for ensunng
that it continues to deal effectively wath all the aspects of its role In
particular, he ensures that Henderson provides the Directors, in a
timely manner, with management, regulatory and financial information
that 1s clear, accurate and relevant Representatives of Henderson
attend each Board meeting, enabling the Directors to seek
clanfication on specific issues or to probe further on matters of
concern Matters specifically reserved for decision by the full Board
have been defined and there 1s an agreed procedure for Directors, in
the furtherance of their dutes, to take independent professional
adwvice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense The Directors have
access to the advice and services of the corporate company secretary,
through its appointed representative, who 1s responsible to the Board
for ensuning that Board procedures are followed

The Board may appoint Directors to the Board without shareholder
approval Any Director so appointed must stand for reappointment by
the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association The total number of Directors shall
not be less than two nor more than fifteen

In addition, under the Articles of Assocration, shareholders may
remove a Director before the end of his or her term by passing a
special resolution at a General Meeting of the Company A special
resolution s passed if more than 75% of the votes cast, in person
or by proxy, are in favour of the resolution

When a Director 1s appointed he or she 1s offered an intraductory
programme organised by Henderson at the request of the Charrman
Directors are also provided, on a regular basis, with key information |
on the Cornpany’s policies, regulatory and statutory requirements and |
internal controls Changes affecting Directors’ responsibilities are |
adwvised to the Board as they anse Directors are encouraged to

attend suitable training courses on an ongoing basis at the

Company's expense i
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The Board have agreed that all Directors will stand for re-election on
an annual basis

The Board's tenure and succession policy seeks to ensure that the
Board 1s well balanced and refreshed regularly by the appointment of
new Directors with the skills and expernence necessary, in particular,
to replace those lost by Directors’ retirements Directors must be able
to demonstrate their commitment, including in terms of time, to the
Company The Board 15 of the view that length of service does not of
itself impair a Director’s ability to act independently Rather, a
longserng Director can offer a perspective that adds value to the
dehberations of a well-balanced investment trust company board
Accordingly, the Board does not consider that Directors lose therr
independence sclely by virtue of length of service but the roles and
contributions of long-serving Directors wilt be subject to particularly
Ngorous review every year

Board Evaluation

The Board’s procedure in the current year for evaluating the
performance of the Board, its Commuittees and the indwidual Directors
has been by means of questionnare The evaluation process 1s
designed to show whether indmidual Directors continue to contribute
effectively to the Board and to clanfy the strengths and weaknesses
of the Board's composition and processes The Charman takes the
lead in acting on the results of the evaluation process In respect of
the Chairman, a meeting of the Directors was held under the
chairmanship of the Senior Independent Directar, without the
Chairman present, to evaluate his performance

The Chairman of the Company 1s an independent non executive
Drrector Kerth Percy 1s the Company’s Serior Independent Director
The Board considers that all the Directors have different qualities and
areas of expertise on which they may lead when 1ssues anse

Board Committees

The Board has established Audit, Management Engagement and
Nomination Committees with defined terms of reference and duties
All three Committees compnse non-executive Directors appainted by the
Board, the Board also appoints the Chairman of each of the Committees
The membership of these Committees s set out on page 16. A record of
the meetings held during the year is set out on page 30

The terms of reference of the three Committees are available

far mspection on the Company's website
www.hendersonsmallercompanies.com or on applcation to
the Corporate Secretary

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s chaired by Beatnice Hollond, the other
members of which are Keith Percy, Mary Ann Sieghart and David
Lamb None of the members of the Audit Committee are accountants
by profession but the Board consider some of the Directors, including
the Audit Cornmittee Chairman, to have recent and relevant financial
experience. David Lamb 1s a qualified actuary The Report of the Audit
Commuttee can be found on pages 32 and 33

Management Engagement Committee

All Directors are members of the Management Engagement
Commuttee, which 1s chaired by the Chairman of the Board

The Management Engagement Committee 1s responsible for the
regular review of the terms of the management contract with
Henderson The Management Engagement Committee met once
formally dunng the year The detaits of the management
arrangements and the Board's review of them 15 set out on pages
4andb

Nomination Committee

Al Directors are members of the Nomination Committee, which 1s
chaired by the Chairman of the Board (who would not charr the
Committee when the Chairman’s successor was being constdered)
The Committee 1s responsible for reviewing Board succession
planning and tenure policy, the performance of the Board as a whole
and the Board Committees and the appointment of new Directors
through an establhished formal procedure

When considenng succession planning, the Committee bears in mind
the batance of skills, knowledge, experence and diversity existing on
the Board although does not consider it appropnate to have set
targets in relation to dversity The Nomination Committee considers
dwersity as part of the annual performance evaluation and rtis felt
that there 15 a broad range of backgrounds, expenence and gender
and each Director brings different qualihes to the Board and its
discussions The Nomination Committee will recommend when the
recruitment of addibonal non-executive Directors 1s required to
enhance the diversity on the Board Once a decision 1s made to recruit
additional Directors to the Board, a formal job description is drawn up
The Committee will use exiernal agencies as and when the
requirement to recruit an addihonal Board member becomes
necessary The Committee also reviews and recommends to the
Board the Directors seeking re-election on an annual basis
Recommendation Is not automatic and will follow a process of
evaluation of each Director’s performance and consideration of the
Director's independence The Committee also takes into account the
mix of skills and expenence of the current Board members In
accordance with the UK Code any Director seraing for longer than six
years would be subject to particularly rigorous assessment of his or
her contnbution

The Committee meets annually to carry out its review of the Board,
its compositton and size and its Committees.

29



30

The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc

Annual Report 2015

Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

Board attendance
The table below sets out the number of Board and Committee
meetings held dunng the year under review and the number of
meetings attended by each Director All Directors attended the
AGM in Qctober 2014

Board AC MEC NC
Number of meetings 6 3 2 1
Jamie Cayzer-Colvin' 6 3 2 1
Keith Percy 6 3 2 1
Dawd Lamb 6 3 2 1
Mary Ann Sieghart 5 3 2 1
Beatnice Hollond 6 3 2 1

AC Audit Committee

MEC Management Engagement Committee

NG Nomination Committes

1 ltarue Cayzer-Cohan s not a member of the Audit Committee but attends meetings by
invitabion

The Directors and committees of the Board also met durning the year to
undertake business such as approval of the Company’s results and
documentation ansing from the introduction of the Alternatwe
Investment Fund Managers Directive

Internal Controls

The Board has estabhshed an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any major risks faced by the Company

The process accords with advice 1ssued by the FRC and 1s subject to
regular renew by the Board The Board has overall responsibility for
the Company’s system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate nsks of falure to achieve the Company’s business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement or loss The Board has reviewed the
effectveness of the Company's system of internal cantrols for the year
ended 31 May 2015 Dunng the course of its review the Board has not
identified or been adwised of any falings or weaknesses that have been
determined as significant. All business nsks faced by the Company are
recorded in a detaled nsk map which 1s reviewed regularly

Henderson has established an internal control framework to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance on the effectveness of the
internal controls operated on behalf of its clients The effectiveness of
the internal controls 1s assessed by Henderson's comphance, internal
audit and nsk departments on a continuing basis The Board recewes
a formal report on a quarterly basis which details the steps taken to
monitor the areas of nsk, including those that are not directly the
responsibility of Henderson, and which reports the details of any known
internal control falures The Board receives a report on Henderson's
internal controls each year which includes a report from Henderson's
Audttors on the control policies and procedures in operation

The Company does not have an internal audit function, it delegates

to third parties most of its operations and does not employ any staff
Accordingly, in practice the Board must place reliance on Henderson

and its other contractors to ensure that they operate effective internal
audit functions The Board will continue to momnitor its system of
internal control in order to provide assurance that it operates as
intended and the Directors will review at least annually whether

a function equrvalent to an internal audit 1s needed

Accountability and Relationship with Henderson

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilites in respect of the financial
statements 1s set out on page 25, the Independent Audrtors' Report on
pages 34 to 38 and the statement of going concern on page 24

The Board has delegated contractually to external third parties,
including Henderson, the management of the investment portiolio,
the custodial services (which include the safeguarding of the assets
which 1s delegated through the appointment of the Depositary as
explained on page 20), the day-to-day accounting, company
secretanal and administration requirements and registration services
Each of these contracts was entered into after full and proper
consideration by the Board of the quality and cost of the services
offered, including the control systems in operation in so far as they
relate to the affairs of the Company

The Board receves and considers regular reports from Henderson
and ad hoc reports and information are supplied to the Board as
required |n addition, the Charrman 15 able to attend meetings of all
the chasrmen of the investment trust companies managed by
Henderson which provide a forum to discuss industry matters which
would then be reported to the Board

Henderson takes decisions as to the purchase and sale of
individual investments Henderson alse ensures that all Directors
receive, In a imely manner, all relevant management, regulatory
and financial information Representatives of Henderson attend
each Board meeting enabling the Directors to probe further on
matters of concern The Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Corporate Secretary through its appointed
representative who is responsible to the Board for ensuning that
Board and Committee procedures are followed and that applicable
rules and regulations are comphed with The proceedings at all
Board and Committee meetings are fully recorded through a
process that allows any Director's concerns to be recorded in
the minutes The Board and Henderson operate in a supportive,
co-cperative and open environment

Henderson and BNP Panbas Secunties Services, which acts for
Henderson, have arrangements in place by which their staff may,

in confidence, raise concerns about possible impropneties in relation
to financial reporting or other matters

The Board has reviewed the implications of the Bribery Act 2010,
which came into force on 1 July 2011, and confirmed its zero
tolerance to bnibery and corruption in its business activities It
has received assurances from the Company’s main contractors
and suppliers that they will maintain adequate safeguards to
protect against any potentially ilegal behaviour by their
employees and agents
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Continued Appointment of Henderson

The Board considers the arrangements for the provision of
investment management and other services to the Company on
an ongoing basis The principal contents of the management
agreement with Henderson are contaned on pages 4 and b

In addition to the moritoring of investment performance at each
meeting, through the Management Engagement Committee an
annual review of the Company’s investment performance over both
the short and longer terms, together with the quality of other services
provided by Henderson, inciuding company secretanal and
accounting, 1s undertaken

Share Capital

Please see the Report of the Directors on page 23

Relations with Shareholders

Shareholder relations are given high prionty by the Board

The prime medium by which the Company communicates with its
sharehelders 1s through the half year results and Annual Report
which aim to provide shareholders with a clear understanding of
the Company’s actvities and their results This information 1s
supplemented by the daily calculation and publication of the NAV
per share to a regulatory information service and a monthly fact
sheet which s avaifable on the website Henderson also provides
information on the Company and Fund Manager videos on the
website, via various social media channels and through its HGI
content platform, more details of which are included on page 17

The Board considers that shareholders should be encouraged to
attend and participate in the AGM, which for the first time this
year will also be available to watch live as it happens by visiting
www henderson com/trustslive Shareholders have the
opportunity to address queshons to the Charman of the Board,

the Chairman of the Audit Commuittee and all other Directors at

the meeting and the Fund Manager will make a presentation

to shareholders A summary of the proxy votes receved on the
resolutions proposed 1s displayed at the meeting and each
substantal 1ssue 15 dealt with in a separate resolution It 1s the
intention of the Board that the Annual Report and notice of AGM
be 1ssued to shareholders so as to provide at least 20 working days'
notice of the meeting These documents are also included on the
website Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in advance of
the meeting, or raise 1ssues or concerns at any time, are invited to
do so by wnting to the Chairman wia the Corporate Secretary at the
address given on page 17

General presentations to both shareholders and analysts follow the
publication of the annual results All meetings between Henderson
and shareholders are reported to the Board

By order of the Boa/rd< !

Henderson Secretaral Services Limited
Corporate Secretary
3 August 2015
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee 1s chaired by Beatrice Hollond, the other
members are Keith Percy, Mary Ann Sieghart and Dawd Lamb

Jamie Cayzer-Calvin attends the Audit Committee meetings by
nvitation Although none of the members of the Audit Committee are
by profession an accountant, the Board considers that several of the
Directors, including the Chairman of the Audit Committee, have
recent and relevant financial experience from their senior
management roles elsewhere

Meetings

The Audit Committee’s usual programme is to meet at least three
times a year in advance of the publication of both the annual and the
half year results and on at least one other occasion with an agenda
that s focused on its broader responsibilities The Company's
Auditors are invited to attend meetings of the Committee on a
regular basis Representatives of Henderson and BNP Paribas
Secunties Services may also be invited to attend it deemed
necessary by the Committee

Role and Responsibilities

The role of the Committee 15 to assist the Board in applying financial
reporting and internal control principles and to maintan an
appropniate relationship with the Auditors The Audit Committee
formally reports te the Board, the Committee's responsibilities are set
out in formal terms of reference which are reviewed at least annually

In the year under review the main duties undertaken were

= areview of the half year resutts and the Annual Report, including
the disclosures made therein in relaton to internal controls and
risk management, going concern and related parties and
consideration of whether the report is farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business
model and strategy in order to make recommendations to the
Board [n assessing whether the report 1s farr, balanced and
understandable, each Director reviewed the disclosures made,
applying their respective knowledge and expertise,

= consideration of the quality and effectiveness of the accounting
records and management information maintained on behalf of the
Company, relying on meetings with and reports from Henderson,

= consideration of the internal controls in place at Henderson and
BNP Panbas Securnties Services as admirustrator, and
Henderson's policies in relation to cyber risk and business
continuity, meeting with representatives of Henderson's internal
audit and nsk departments penodically,

= consideration of the whistle blowing policy that Henderson has
put in place for its staff to raise concerns about possible
impropnieties, including in relation to the Company, in confidence
The policy includes the necessary arrangements for independent
investigation and follow up action,

= consideraton of the key nsks, nsk management systems in place
and the Company's nsk map,

* consideration of the Company's Anti-Bnbery Policy,

« consideration of whether there 1s a need for an internal audit
function in order to make a recommendation to the Board,

= consideration of the nature and scope of the external audit and
the findings therefrom,

= consideration of the appointment of the Auditors, the Auditors
performance and remuneration,

* consideration of the Auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the prowision of any non-audit services, and

= consideration of the appropnate level of dividend to be paid by
the Company

Policy on Non-Audit Services

In July 2011 the Audit Committee adopted a new policy on the
provision of non-audit services, in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Council's Guidance on Audit Committees The Committee
has determined that the Auditors will not be engaged to provide any
non-audit services where the Committee considers there to be any
significant nsk of thewr independence, cbjectvity and effectiveness
being compromised by the provision of such services The Committee
may approve the provision of non-audit services 1 it considers such
services to be (a) relevant to the statutory audit work, (b) more
efficiently provided by the external audit firm than by a third party,
and (c) at low nsk of impainng the independence, objectwity and
effectiveness of the audit. The Audit Committee will refer to the
Board any engagement with a cost or potential cost greater than
£20,000 (or the cost, excluding VAT, of the most recent annual audit
if igher) All engagements for non-audit services will be determined
on a case-by-case basis
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Audit for the year ended 31 May 2015

In relation to the financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015 the following significant 1ssues were considered by the Committes

Significant issue

How the issue was addressed

Valuation and ownership of
the Company's investments

The Directors have apponted Henderson to perform the valuation of the assets of the
Company in accordance with its responsibilities under the AIFMD rules As required under
the AIFMD rules, Henderson has adopted a written valuation policy, which may be modified
from time to ime: Actively traded investments are valued using stock exchange prices
provided by third party pricing vendors. Ownership of listed investments are venfied by
reconcihation to the Custodian’s records

Correct calculation of the
performance fee

The performance fee calculation 1s prepared by the Administrators (BNP Paribas Secuntes
Services) and reviewed by Henderson and reviewed in depth by the Committee, all with
reference to the investment management agreement.

Compliance with Section 1158 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Committee regularly considers the controls in place to ensure that the regulations for
ensunng investment trust status are observed at all times

Maintaining internal controls

The Committee receives regular reports on internal controls from Henderson and its
delegates and has access to the relevant personnel of Henderson who have a responsibility
for nsk management and internal audit

Recognitton of iIncome

Income received 1s accounted for in line with the Company's accounting policy (as set out
on page 44) and 1s reviewed by the Committee at each meeting

The Committee 1s satisfied that the Annual Report for the year ended 31 May 2015, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business modet and strategy

External Audit, Review and Re-appointment

In 2014 the Company invited tenders for the Company’s audit.

After full consideration of the proposals, and the Audrtors’
performance, the Committee recommended to the Board that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP continue as Auditors to the Company

The Committee discuss the audit process with the Auditors without
representatives of Henderson present and considers the
effectiveness of the audit process after each audit The Audit
Committee remains satisfied with the effectiveness of the audit
provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

The Committee 1s sahsfied that the Auditors are independent of
the Company The Auditors are required to rotate partners every
five years and this is the second year that the current partner has
been in place

Resolutions to confirm the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors to the Company and to
authorise the Directors to determine thewr remuneration wili be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Audit Tendering

As a Public Interest Entity iisted on the London Stock Exchange, the
Company will in future be subject to the mandatory auditor rotation
requirements of the European Union Subject to the detalled
implementation of the European requirements in the UK, this 1s likely
to mean that the Company will put the externat audrt out to tender at
least every ten years, and change Auditors at least every twenty years
The Audit Committee will, however, continue to consider annually the
need to go to tender for audit quality or iIndependence reasons

Beatnice Hollond
Audi Committee Chairman
3 August 2015

33



The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc Annual Report 2015

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust pic

Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion
In our opinion, The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc's financial statements (the “financial statements”)

= gwve atrue and far view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 May 2015 and of ds profit and cash flows for the year then ended,
* have been properly prepared in accordance wath Intematonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and
* have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited
The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc's financial statements comprise

= the Balance Sheet as at 31 May 2015,

= the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended,

» the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,

= the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and

= the Notes to the Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial statements These
are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union

Qur audit approach
Overview

= Overall matenality £56 milhon which represents 1% of net assets

= The Company is a standalone Investment Trust Company and engages Henderson
Investment Funds Limited (the “Manager”) to manage its assets

* We conducted our audit of the financial statements using information from BNP Panbas
Secunties Services (the “Administrator”) to whom the Manager has, with the consent of
the Directors, delegated the provision of certain administrative functions

= We tatlored the scope of our audit taking into account the types of nvestments within
the company, the involvement of the third parties referred to above, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the company operates

* Valuation and existence of investments
* Investment income
* Performance fee
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The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & lreland)")

We designed our audit by determining matenality and assessing the risks of matenal misstatement in the financial statements As in all of our
audits, we also addressed the nsk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by
the Directors that represented a nsk of matenal misstatement due to fraud

The nsks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, ncluding the allocation of our resources and effort, are identfied
as "areas of focus® in the table below We have also set out how we tallored our audit to address these specific areas in order to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context.

This 1s not a complete list of all nsks dentified by our audit.

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Valuation and existence of investments

Refer to page 33 (Report of the Audit Committee), page 44
(Accounting Policies) and page 50 (Notes to the Financial
Statements)

The investment portfolio at the year-end pnincipally compnsed listed
equity mvestments valued at £605 7 milkon

We focused on the valuation and existence of investments because
nvestments represent the pncipal element of the net asset value as
disclosed on the Balance Sheet in the financial statements

We tested the valuation of the listed equity investments by
agreeing the prices used in the valuation to independent third
party sources No misstatements were identified by our testing
which required reporting to those charged with governance

We tested the existence of the investment portfolio by agreeing
the holdings for investments to an independent custodian
confirmabon from HSBC Bank plc. No differences were identified

Investment Income

Refer to page 33 (Report of the Audit Committee), page 44
{Accounting Policies) and page 47 (Notes to the Financial
Statements)

We focused on the accuracy and completeness of dividend income
recognitron and s presentation in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as set out in the requirements of The Association of
Investment Companies Statement of Recommended Practice (the
“AIC SORP")

This ts because incomplete or inaccurate income could have a
materral mpact on the Company's net asset value and dvidend cover

We assessed the accounting policy for income recoegmihon for
comphance with accounting standards and the AIC SORP and
performed testing to check that income had been accounted for
tn accordance with this stated accounting policy

We found that the accounting policies implemented were in
accordance with accounting standards znd the AIC SORF, and
that income has been accounted for in accordance with the stated
accounting policy

We understood and assessed the design and implementation of
relevant controls surrounding income recognition

In additicn, we tested dividend receipts by agreeing the dividend
rates from investments to independent third party sources No
misstatements were tdentified by our testing which required
reporting to those charged with governance

To test for completeness, we tested that the appropnate dividends
had been recewved in the year by reference to independent data of
dvidends declared by investment holdings in the portfolio Qur
testing did not identfy any unrecorded dvidends

We tested the allocation and presentation of dmdend income
between the revenue and capital return columns of the Statement
of Comprehensive Income i line with the requirements set out in
the AIC SORP We then tested the vahdity of special dwdends to
independent third party sources We did not find any special
dnadends that were not treated in accordance with the AIC SORP
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Area of focus How our audit addressed the area of focus

Performance fee We independently recalculated the performance fee of

Refer to page 33 (Report of the Audit Committee), page 44 £2 0 million using the methodology set outin the Investment

(Accountlng Polictes) and page 47 (Notes to the Financial Management Agreement and agreed the inputs to the calcutation,

Statements) including the benchmark data, to independent third party sources,
where applicable No misstatements were identified by our testing

A performance fee 1s payable for the year of £20 millon We which required reporting to those charged with governance

focused on this area because the performance fee 1s calculated

using a complex methodology as set out in the Investment We tested the allocation of the performance fee between the

Management Agreement between the Company and the Manager revenue and capital return columns of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income with reference to the accounting policy as
set out on page 44 We found that the allocation of the
performance fee was consistent with the accounting policy

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the types of investments within the Company, the involvement of the Manager and Administrator, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company operates

The Company's accounting is delegated to the Administrator who maintain their own accounting records and controls and report to the
Manager and the Directors

As part of our sk assessment, we assessed the control environment in place at both the Manager and the Administrator to the extent
relevant to our audit This assessment of the operating and accounting structure in place at both orgarusations involved obtaining and reading
the relevant control reports 1ssued by the independent auditor of the Manager and the Administrator in accordance with generally accepted
assurance standards for such work. We then identified those relevant controls at the Administrator on which we could place reliance to
provide audit evidence

Matenality

The scope of our audit was nfluenced by our apphcation of matenality We set certain quantitative thresholds for matertality These, together
with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to
evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Overall matenabty £56 milhon (2014 £4 7 million)

How we determined it 1% of net assets

Rationale for We have apphed this benchmark, a generally accepted auditing practice for investment trust audits
benchmark apphed

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified dunng our audit above £281,000
(2014 £238,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ statement, set out on page 24, 1n relation to going concern We have nothing
to report having performed our review

As noted in the Directors' statement, the Directors have concluded that it 1s approprate to prepare the Company’s financial statements using

the going concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes that the Company has adequate resources to remain in operation,
and that the Directors intend it to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial statements were signed As part of our audit we have
concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis 1s appropnate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern
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Other required reporting

Consistency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

[SAs (UK & Ireland) reporting

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

= information n the Annual Report s We have no exceptions
~ materally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements, or to repart ansing from this
— apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Company | responsibility
acquired in the course of performing our audit, or
— otherwise misleading

= the staternent given by the Directors on page 25, in accordance with prowision C 1 1 of the UK Corporate We have no exceptions
Governance Code (the “Code™), that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced | to report ansing from this
and understandable and prowdes the information necessary for members to assess the Company's responsibility
performance, business model and strategy 1s materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Company
acquired in the course of performing our audit.

* the section of the Annual Report on page 33, as required by provision C 3 8 of the Code, describing the We have no exceptions
work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit to report ansing from this
Committee responsibility

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, In our opinion

= we have not recewed all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by
us, or

= the financial statements and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ Remuneration Report — Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opinton, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies
Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneraton specified by
law are not made We have no excephions to report ansing from this responsibiity

Corporate governance statement
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance
with ten provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report having performed our review
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 25, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and farr iew

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs (UK & Irefand)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audttors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinans, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately
disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and
= the overall presentation of the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable
basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-finanaal iInformation in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identfy any information that is apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit lf we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

{@sﬂ_ﬁ\ /'\“?"L‘e’\ *

Jeremy Jensen (Seruor Statutory Auditer)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

3 August 2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 May 2015

Year ended 31 May 2014

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
retumn retum Total retum return Total

Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
2 Investment income 12,838 - 12,838 11,050 - 11,060
3 Other sncome 207 - 207 121 - 121
10 Gains on investments held at

tair value through profit or loss — 89,494 89,494 — 73,959 73,959

Total Income 13,045 89,494 102,539 11171 73,959 85,130

Expenses
4 Management and performance

fees (538} (3,256) (3,794} (491) (1,696) (2,187)
5 Other expenses (472) ~ (472) (443) - {443)

Profit before finance costs

and taxation 12,035 86,238 98,273 10,237 72,263 82,500
6 Finance costs {789) (1,841) (2,630) (760) (1,773) (2533)

Profit before taxation 11,246 84,397 95,643 9,477 70,490 79,967
7 Taxation (12) - (12 9 - ®

Profit for the year and total

comprehensive income 11,234 84,397 95,631 9,468 70,490 79,958
8 Basic and diluted earnings

per ordinary share 1504p 11298p 128 02p 12.67p 9437p 107 04p

The total column of this statement represents the Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union

The revenue return and capital return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Association of
Investment Companies

The notes on pages 43 to 68 foom part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 May 2015

Retained earnings
Capiltal
Calied up redemption Capital Revenue
share caprtal reserve reserves reserve Total
Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total equity at 1 June 2014 18,676 26,745 417577 13283 476,281
Total comprehenswe income
Profit for the year - - 84,397 11,234 95,631
Transactions with owners, recorded directly to equity
g Ordinary dwidends paid — - - (8,591) (8,591)
Total equity at 31 May 2015 18,676 26,745 501,974 15,926 563,321
For the year ended 31 May 2014
Retzined earnings
Capital
Called up redemption Capital Revenue
share capital reserve reserves reserve Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total equity at 1 June 2013 18676 26,745 347,087 10912 403,420
Total comprehensive iIncome
Profit for the year - - 70,490 9,468 79,958
Transactions with owners, recorded directly to equity
9 Qrdinary dwidends paid - - - (7,097) (7,097
Total equity at 31 May 2014 18,676 26,745 417,577 13,283 476,281

The notes on pages 43 to 58 form part of thess financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
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At 31 May At 31 May
2015 2014
Notes £'000 £000
Non current assets
10 Investments held at farr vatue through profit or loss 605,776 519,552
Current assets
12 Recewvables 2,734 2687
Tax recoverable 12 17
Cash and cash equivalents 10,183 1,154
12,929 3,858
Total assets 618,705 523410
Current liabilities
13 Payables (3,179) (1,095)
14 Financial habilities (20,000) -
15 Bank loans (32,201) (26,030)
(55,380) {27,125}
Total assets less current Labilities 563,325 496,285
Non current habilities
14 Financial labiities (4) (20,004}
Net assets 563,321 476,281
Equity attnbutable to equity shareholders
16 Called up share capital 18,676 18,678
17 Capital redemption reserve 26,745 26,745
Retained earnings
17 Capital reserve 501974 4178577
18 Revenue reserve 15,926 13,283
Total equity 563,321 476,281
19 Basic and diluted net asset value per ordinary share 754 1p 637 6p

The finanaial statements on pages 39 to 58 were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2015 and signed on ther behalt by

db

Jarmie Cayzer-Colvin

Charrman

The notes on pages 43 to 58 form part of these financial statements.
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The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc

Cash Flow Statement

Annual Report 2015

Year ended

31 May 31 May

2015 2014

Notes £'000 £'000
Operating activities

Profit before taxation 95,643 79967

6 Add nterest payable 2,630 2,533

Less gains on investments held at fair value through profit or loss (89,494) (73959)

Purchases of investments (135,283) {121,204)

Sales of investments 138,553 1192270

(Increase)/decrease In recevables (696) 133

Decrease/(increase) 1n amounts due from brokers 640 (791)

Decrease/(increase) in accrued income e} 2

Increase/(decrease) in payables 1,517 (1170)

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to brokers 584 (102)

Taxatton on investment income {(7) (9)

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities before interest and taxation 14,096 (2,344)

Interest paid (2847) (2,496)

Income tax - 3

Net cash inflow/{cutflow) from operating activities 11,449 (4,843)
Financing activities

9 Equity dwvidends paid (8,591) (7,097)

Drawdown of bank loans 6,171 10,499

Net cash (outflow)/Inflow from financing activities (2,420) 3,402

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,029 (1,441)

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 1,154 2,585

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,183 1,154

The notes on pages 43 to 58 form part of thess financial statementa.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple {the “Company”) 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The financial statemenits of the Company for the year ended 31 May 2015 have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. These comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"), together with interpretations of the International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee approved by the International Financial Reporting Standards Committee (“IFRSC”)
that remain In effect, to the extent that IFRS have been adopted by the European Union

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and on the histanical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
certain financial nstruments held at fair value through profit ar loss The principal accounting palicies adopted are set out below These
policies have been applied consistently throughout the year Where presentational guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended
Practice (the "SORP") for investment trusts 1ssued by the Association of Investment Companies (the “AIC"} in January 2009)s
consistent with the requirements of IFRS, the Directors have sought to prepare the financial statements on a basis consistent with the
recommendations of the SORP

Accounting Standards
(1) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

« |AS 39, 'Financial nstruments Recogniton and measurement' (effective for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 January
2014) - narrow scope amendments allow hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a denvative, which has been
designated as a hedging instrument, 1s novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if
specific condifions are met (in this context, a novation indicates that parties to a contract agree to replace their onginal
counterparty with a new one)

= 1AS 32, ‘Financial nstruments Presentation' {effective for financial peniads beginning on or after 1 January 2014) - updates the
apphication guidance in IAS 32, ‘Financial mstruments Presentation), to clarfy some of the requirements for offsetting financsal
assets and financial habiities on the Balance Sheet.

(1) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the current financial year and not early
adopted by the Company

» IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ (effective for financial penods beginning on or after 1 January 2015) — These
amendments are as part of the IASB initative to improve presentation and disclosure in financial reports effectve for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, subject to EU endorsement.

« IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’ {effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) — addresses the classification,
measurement and recognitron of financial assets and financial habiltes IFRS 9 was 1ssued m November 2009 and Gctober 2010
kt replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement categores those measured as at far value and those measured at amortised cost.
The determination 1s made at initiat recognition The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing ts financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the instrument. For financial habilites, the standard retains most of the
IAS 39 requirements. The main change 1s that, in cases where the fair value option 1s taken for financial liabiities, the part of a farr
value change due to an entity's own credit nsk 1s recorded in other comprehensive iIncome rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch The company is yet to assess IFRS 9% full mpact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no
later than the accounting penod beginning on or after 1 January 2018, subject to endorsement by the EU

(i} New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the current financlal year and not relevant
to the company’s operations

= |IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’

* |AS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment

= IFRS 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’

= |AS 27, ‘Separate financral statements’

= IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures’
» |FRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’

= IFRS 11, Joint arrangements’
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

b) Going concern

The Company's shareholders are asked every three years to vote for the continuation of the Company An ordinary resolution to this
effect was put to the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") held on 4 October 2013 and passed by a substantial majonty of the
shareholders The assets of the Company consist aimost entirely of secunihes that are hsted (or listed on AIM) and, accordingly, the
Directors believe that the Company has adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
For these reasons, the Board has decided that it 1s appropnate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis

c) Investments held at farr value through profit or loss

All investments are designated upon iniial recognition as held at fair value through profit or loss Investment transacttons are accounted
for on a trade date basis Assets are de-recognised at the trade date of the disposal Proceeds are measured at farr value, which is
regarded as the proceeds of sale less any transacton costs The farr value of the financial instruments 1s based on their quoted bid
pnce at the balance sheet date, without deduction of the estimated future selling costs Unquoted investments are valued by the
Directors using pnmary valuation techniques such as earnings multiples, recent transactions and net assets Where fair value cannot be
reliably measured the investment will be carried at the previous reporting date value unless there is evidence that the investment has
since been impaired, in which case the value will be reduced

Changes in the fair value of investments held at far value through profit or loss and gains and losses on disposal are recogmised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as “Gains or losses on investments held at fair value through profit or loss” Also included within
this caption are transaction costs in relation to the purchase or sale of investments, including the difference between the purchase pnce
of an investment and its bid price at the date of purchase

d) Presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Income

In order to better reflect the actvities of an investment trust company, and in accordance with guidance issued by the Assaciation of

investment Companies (“the AIC"), supplementary information which analyses the Statement of Comprehenswve Income between items

of arevenue and capital nature has been presented alongside the Statement of Comprehensive Income In accordance with the

Company’s status as a UK investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006, net capital returns are no longer |
prohibited to be distnbuted by way of dwdend where authonty 1s given within the Company's Articles of Association Additionally, the
net revenue 1s the measure the Directors beheve appropnate in assessing the Company's comphiance with certain requirements set out
in section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

&) Income

Dwmidends recewable on equity shares are recognised as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis Special dividends are treated as
revenue return or as capital return, depending on the facts of each individual case Interest 1s recognised using the effective interest
rate method Interest from debt secunbes 1s accounted for on an accruals basts

Where the Company enters into a commitment to sub-underwrite an 1ssue of securihies in exchange for the receipt of commussion, a
dervative financial instrument 1s created Any such dervatives are recogrised inhially at far value They are re-measured subsequently
at fair value, with the related gains and losses being reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Net losses ansing from
these denvatives, where the actual or expected loss from taking up the secunties underwritten exceeds the commission income, are
allocated to the capital return Net gains are allocated to the revenue return

Income distnbutions from UK Real Estate Investment Trusts (UK REITs) will be split into two parts, a Property Income Distribution (PID)
made up of rental revenue and a non-PID element, consisting of non-rental revenue The PID element i1s subject to corporation tax as
schedule A revenue, while the non-PID element will be treated as franked revenue

f) Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis The Board has determined that the capital return should reftect the indirect costs
of earning caprtal returns Since 1 June 2013, the Company has allocated 70% of its management fees and finance costs to the capital
return of the Statement of Comprehensive Income with the remaining 30% being allocated to the revenue return

All other admimistrative expenses are charged to the revenue return of the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Any performance fees are charged wholly to the capital return

Expenses which are incidental to the purchase or sale of an investment are recognised immediately in the capital return of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, and are inciuded within the gains on investments held at fair value through profit or loss




The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Accounting policies (continued)

g) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on the taxable profit for the penod Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income because it excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that were
applicable at the balance sheet date

In line with the recommendations of the SORP, the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented against capital
returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s the “marginal basis® Under this basis, if taxable
income 1s capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, then no tax relief s transferred to the capital return column

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habdihies in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the
balance sheet hability method Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temparary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avarlable against which deductible temporary differences can be
utihsed Investment trusts which have approval as such under section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 are not hable for taxation
on capital gains

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow alt or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hability 15 settled or the asset 1s realised
Deferred tax s charged or credited in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax s also dealt with in equity

h) Foreign currency

For the purposes of the financial statements, the results ang financial position are expressed in pounds sterling, which 1s the functicnal
currency and presentational currency of the Company Sterfing 1s the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary
economic envircnment in which the Company operates

Transactions recorded in overseas currencies dunng the year are translated into sterling at the appropriate dally exchange rates
Monetary assets and habilities and investments held at tair value through profit or loss which are denominated in overseas currencies at
the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at that date Gains and losses ansing on the
retranstation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss are included within the “Gains/{losses) on investments held at farr
value through profit or loss” Any foreign currency gans and losses are taken to capital in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash compnses cash in hand and demand deposits Cash equivalents are short-term, highly hquid investments that are readily
convertible ta known amounts cf cash and that are subject to an wnsignificant nsk of changes in value.

1) Borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans, overdrafts, Debenture Stock and Preference Stock are recorded initially at fair value, being the proceeds
received, net of direct 1ssue costs They are subsequently measured at amortised cost Finance charges, including premiums payable
on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
using the effective interest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled
in the period in which they anse

The Preference Stock has been classified as a habilty as it represents a contractual obhigation on behalf of the Company to deliver to
the stockholders a fixed and determinable amount at the date of redemption
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
k) Operating segments

Under IFRS 8, operating segments are considered to be components of an entity about which separate financial information is available
that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and In assessing performance
The Directors meet regularly to consider investment strategy and to monitor the Company's performance The Fund Manager, who has
been appointed to manage the Company’s investments, attends all Board meetings at which investment strategy and performance are
discussed

The Directors consider that the Company has one operating segment, being the activity of investing in shares and securnities primarily
for capital appreciation in accordance with the Company’s published investment objective The Company operates within the United
Kingdom

) Dividends payable to shareholders
Dwdends payable to shareholders are recognised in the financial statements when they are paid or, in the case of final dvidends, when
they are approved by shareholders Dvidends are recorded in the Statement of Changes in Equity

m) Capital reserves
Capital reserve anising on investments sold

The following are accounted for in this reserve

gains and losses on the disposals of investments,
- expenses and finance costs allocated to capital net of tax relief,
realised foreign exchange differences of a capital nature, and

costs of repurchasing ordinary share capital
Caprtal reserve ansing on revaluation of investments held

The following are accounted for in this reserve
— Increases and decreases n the valuation of investments held at the year end, and
- unreahsed foreign exchange differences of a capital nature

n) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Mandatornly redeemable preference shares are classified as llabiliies Incremental costs directly
attnbutable to the 1ssue of new ardinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where the Company purchases its own equity share capital (reasury shares), the consideration paid, ncluding any diectly attnbutable
incremental costs (net of ncome taxes) 1s deducted from equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration recewed, net of any directly attributable
incremental fransaction costs and the related income tax effects, 1s included in equity attnbutable to the Company’s equity holders

0) Key estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions used in prepanng the financial statements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on histoncal
expenence and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The results of these estimates and
assumphons form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources

There are no estimates and assumptions that may cause matenal adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilites as descnbed
in note 15




The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc

Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

92 Investment income

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Franked income from compantes listed or quoted in the Urited Kingdom
Dwidends 10873 9,129
Special dwidends 1,499 1,079
Unfranked income from companies listed or quoted in the United Kingdom
Dwidends 411 752
Property income distnibutions 56 90
3 Other ncome
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Bank interest 2 4
Underwriting income (allocated to revenue)' 205 117
207 121
1 None of the income recewvable from sub-underwnting commitments was allocated to capital during the year (2014 £}
4 Management and performance fees
2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
retumn return Total retum raturn Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Management fee h38 1,256 1,794 491 1,145 1,636
Performance fee - 2,000 2,000 - 551 651
538 3,256 3.794 491 1,696 2,187
A summary of the management agreement is given on pages 4 and b of the Strategic Report.
5 Other expenses
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Directors' fees (see the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 26 and 27) 114 121
Audttors' remuneration for the audit of the Company and the financial statements 24 23
Other professtonal fees 1 58
FCA and London Stock Exchange fees 29 24
Registration costs 13 15
Annual and half year reports and shareholder circulars printing and distribution 21 13
Insurances 7 6
AIC subscrnptions 29 24
Custody and other bank charges 27 34
Bank faclities commitment fees 50 56
Charitable donations 5 5
Depositary charges' 41 -
Other expenses payable to the management company?® 41 38
Share price histings in newspapers and websites 6 9
Other expenses® 17 17
472 443

1 Depository appointed on 22 July 2014 to meet the requrements of the AIFMD
2 Other expenses payable to the management company (*Henderson®) relate to sales and marketing services
3 Other expenses includes VAT payable on Auditors' remunaraton

All transactions with Directors are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and are related party transactions

All the above expenses include VAT where VAT is applied to them
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6 Finance costs

2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
retumn return Total return retumn Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Bank overdraft and loan interest 159 371 530 130 303 433
nterest on debentures 630 1,470 2,100 630 1,470 2,100
789 1,841 2,630 760 1,773 2,533
7 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge for the year
2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
return retum Total return return Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Overseas tax suffered 19 - 12 ] — 9
Current and total tax charge for the year 12 - 12 9 = 9

b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
UK corporation tax at 2083% (2014 22 67%) Approved investment trusts are exempt from corporation tax on chargeable gains made
by the investment trust

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than the average standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 2083% (2014 22 67%) for the year
ended 31 May 2015 The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Aprl 2015 Accordingly
the Company's profits for this accounting penod are taxed at an effective rate of 20 83%. The differences are explained below

2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capltal

return return Total return return Total

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net profit on ordinary activities before taxation 11,246 84,397 95,643 9477 70,490 79,967
Corporation tax at 20 83% (2014 22 67%) 2343 17,679 19922 2,148 15,880 18,128
Effects of
Non-taxable UK dividends 2577) - @577 (2,308) - (2,308)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (86) - (86) (164) - (164)
Excess management expenses and loan deficits 319 1,062 1,381 324 786 1,110
Overseas withholding tax 12 - 12 9 - 9
Disallowed expenses 1 - 1 - - -
Non taxable capital tems - | (18641)| (18641) — | ©16,766){ (16,766)
Tax charge 12 - 12 9 - 9

¢) Provision for deferred taxation
No provision has been made for deferred tax on income outstanding at the end of the year and this will be covered by unrelieved
business charges

Due to the Company's status as an investment trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to maintain approval
of such status in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided for deferred tax on capital gains or losses anising on the
revaluation or disposal of investments

d) Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £13,931,000 (2014 £12,602,000) ansing as a result of having unutihsed
management expenses and deficits on loan relationships These expenses will only be utilised if the tax treatment of the Company’s
income and chargeable gains changes or if the Company’s investment profile changes
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8 Earnings per ordinary share

The earnings per ordinary share figure is based on the net earnings for the year of £95,631,000 (2014 £79,958,000) and on
74,701,796 (2014 74,701,796) ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year

The earnings per ordinary share figure detaled above can be further analysed between revenue and capital, as below

The Company has no securrties in 1ssue that could dilute the return per ordinary share Therefore the basic and diluted earmnings
per ordinary share are the same

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Net revenue profit 11,234 2468
Net capital profit 84,397 70,480
Net total profit 95,631 79,958
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year 74,701,796 | 74,701,796
2015 2014
pence pence
Revenue earnings per ordinary share 1504 1267
Capital earnings per ordinary share 11298 9437
Total earnings per ordinary share 12802 107 04
9 Dividends

2015 2014
£'000 £000

Amounts recogmsed as distributions to equity holders in the year
Final dvdend for the year ended 31 May 2014 of 80p (2013 6 5p) per ordinary share 5976 4,855
Interm dividend for the year ended 31 May 2015 of 35p (2014 30p) per ordinary share 2,615 2,241
859 7,097

The final dividend of 8 Op per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 May 2014 was paid on 10 October 2014 to shareholders
on the register of members at the close of business on 19 September 2014 The dividend paid amounted to £5,876,0001n total

Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dwvidend of 10 0p per ordinary share will be paid on 9 October
2015 to shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 18 September 2015

The proposed final dvidend for the year ended 31 May 2015 has not been included as a hability in these financial statements Under
IFRS, the final dwvidend 1s not recognised until approved by the shareholders

The total dividends payable in respect of the financial year which form the basis of the test under section 1158 of the Carporation Tax

Act 2010 are set out below
215 2014
£'000 £000
Revenue available for distnbution by way of dvidends for the year 11,234 9,468
Intenm dwidend for the year ended 31 May 2015 of 35p (2014 3 0Op) per ordinary share (2615) {2,241)
Final dwidend for the year ended 31 May 2014 80p (based on the 74,701,796 shares in 1ssue at
28 August 2014) - (5976)
Proposed final dmdend for the year ended 31 May 2015 10 Op {based on the 74,701,796 shares n
1ssue at 3 August 2015) (7,470) -
Retained revenue for year 1,149 1,251
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10 Investments held at fair value through profit or loss

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Cost at 1 June 2014 300,392 254,985
Investment holding gans at 1 June 2014 218,160 181,674
Valuation at 1 June 2014 519,552 436,659
Movements in the year
Acquisitions at cost 135,283 121,204
Disposais at cost (79,187) (75,797)
Movement in investment holding gains 30,138 37,486
Valuation at 31 May 2015 605,776 519,552
Cost at 31 May 2015 356,478 300,392
Investment holding gains 249,298 219,160
Valuation at 31 May 2015 605,776 519,552

Purchase and sale transaction costs for the year ended 31 May 2015 were £391,000 and £144,000 respectvely (2014 transaction

costs of purchases £486,000, transaction costs of sales £116,000) These compnse mainly stamp duty and commission

Analysis of investments at far value

2015 2014
£'000 £'000

Equity investments
Listed on London Stock Exchange 551,965 475972
Listed on Alternative Investment Market 53,811 43580
605,776 519,552

All the investments are listed in the United Kingdom The above categornes are based on information obtained frem the Stock Exchange

Daly Official list.

Total capital gains from investments

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Gains on the sale of investments based on histonical cost 59,3556 36,473
Revaluation gans recognised In previous years (43,669) {25,165)
Gains on investments sold in the year based on the carrying value at the previous balance
sheet date 15,687 11,308
Investment holding gans 73,807 62,651
89,494 73,959

All capital gains/{losses) are from investments that are listed (or Iisted on AIM) in the United Kingdom
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11

12

13

14

Substantial interests

The Company held interests in 3% or more of any class of share capital in three investee companies (2014 four investee companies)
These investments are not considered by the Directors to be significant in the context of these financial statements.

Valuation % of
£'000 voting rights
e2v Technologies 17,809 32
WYG 2,850 43
Koovs 911 52
Recewvables
2015 2014
E'000 £000
Secunties sold for future settlement 731 1,374
Prepayments and accrued income 2003 1316
2,734 2,687
Payables
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Securities purchased for future settlement 679 95
Performance fee 2000 551
Accruals and deferred income 500 449
3179 1,095
Financial habilities
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Debenture Stock
105% Debenture Stock 2016 (redeemable at par on 31 May 2016) 20,000 20,000
Preference Stock
4,257 Preference Stock units of £1 each (2014 4257) 4 4
20,004 20,004

The Company may at any time purchase any of the Debenture Stock, in accordance with the provisions of the trust deed constituting
and secunng the Debenture Stock. However, it is not the Company’s present intention to redeem the Debenture Stock before the final

redemption date. The Debenture Stock 1s secured by way of a floating charge on all of the Company’s assets Interest on the Debenture
Stock 1s payable half yearly, on 31 May and 30 November

The preference stock units carry the nght to recewve a non-cumulative dwidend at a final rate of 0.001% payable on 1 June each year
On a winding-up of the Company, preference stockholders are entifted to repayment of the capital paid up thereon The Preference

Stock does not enhile the holder to attend or vote at any General Meeting of the Company except where the dwvidend 1s six months in
arrears or on a resolution to hquidate the Company
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15 Risk management policies and procedures

The Directors manage investment nsk principally through setting an investment policy (that is approved by shareholders) which
incorporates nsk parameters (see page 4), by contracting management of the Company's investments to an investment manager
(Henderson) under a contract which incorporates appropnate duties and restrictions and by monttonng performance in relation to
these The Board's relationship with Henderson 15 discussed on page 30 Internal control and the Board's approach to risk is also on
page 30 There have been no matenal changes to the management or nature of the Company's investment risks from the prior year

The main nsks ansing from the Company's pursuit of its investment objective are market nsk, credit nsk and hquidity nsk The effects of
these can also be increased by geanng

The Board and Henderson co-ordinate the Company’s nsk management and there are vanous nsk management systems in place as
detalled below
» Straght-through processing via a deal order and management system (*OMS") 1s utihised for listed secunties

= Portfolio modelling and investment management functions (including order-raising, dealing and trade execution) are performed using
one of, or a combination of, the following third-party software applications Charles Rwer Development OMS and/or Imagine

* Fund priang and accounting services are outsourced to a third-party administrator (currently BNP Paribas Securities Services)
which utihses Hiportfolio software

= The IT tools to which the Henderson risk, comphance and operations teams have access for independent monitoning and risk
measurement purposes include

1

Charles River Compliance medule for investment restnictions monitoring,

Arclogics operational nisk database,

RiskMetrics, UBS Delta, Style Research, Finanalytica and Barra Aegis for market nsk measurement,

Bloomberg for market data and price-checking, and

Hiportfolio for portfolio holdings and valuations

a) Market nsk

The fair value of a financial instrument held by the Company may fluctuate due to changes in market pnces This market nsk comprises
market price nsk (see note 15 (b)), currency nisk (see note 15 {c)) and interest rate nsk (see note 15 (d)) The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing these nsks Henderson assesses the exposure to market nsk when making each investment decision and
monitors the overall level of market nisk on the whole of the investment portfolio on an ongoing basis

b) Market price nisk

Market price nsk (1e changes in market prices other than those anising from interest rate nsk or currency nsk) may affect the fair value
of the investments The Company’s investments are susceptible to market price sk ansing from uncertainhes about the future prices of
the investments

Management of the risk

The Board manages the nsks inherent in the investment portfolio by ensuring full and timely access to relevant information from
Henderson The Board regularly reviews investment performance The Board monitors Henderson's compliance with the Company's
objectives and 1s directly responsible for investment strategy

The Company's exposure to changes in market prices at 31 May 2015 on its equity investments was £605,776,000 (2014 £518,552,000)

Concentration of exposure to market price nsk

An analysis of the Company’s investments 1s shown on pages 14 and 15 and a sector analysis 1s set out on page 8 At 31 May 2015 all
the investments were in companies hsted or quoted in London, most of them being companies established in and operating from the
United Kingdom Accordingly, there 1s a concentration of exposure to the UK, although 1t 1s recognised that an investment's country of
dormicile or of bsting does not necessanly equate to its exposure to the economic conditions in that country
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15 Risk management policies and procedures (continued)

Market price risk sensitivity

The sensitmity of (a) the return after taxation for the year and (b) the Company's net assets to an increase or decrease of 25% in the
fair values of the Company's investments at each balance sheet date 1s given below This level of change 1s considered to be reasonably
possible, based on observation of current market conditions

The impact of a 25% increase in the value of the investments on the revenue return as at 31 May 2015 1s a decrease of £159,000
(2014 £137,000) and an the capital return 1s an increase of £151,073,000 (2014 £128,570,000) Accordingly, the total impact on
shareholders' funds 1s an increase of £150,914,000 (2014 £128,433,000)

The impact of a 25% decrease in the value of the invesiments on the revenue return as at 31 May 2015 1s an increase of £159,000
(2014 £137,000) and on the caprital return 1s a decrease of £151,073,000 (2014 £129,570,000) Accordingly, the total mpact s a
decrease of £150,914,000 (2014 £129,433,000)

¢) Currency nsk
The Company is not itself matenally exposed to currency nsk, although some of the vestments will be in companies that have
operations that involve currency nisk.

As at 31 May 2015, the Company dig not hold any non-sterling denominated investments (2014 nil)

d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may atfect

*+ the level of income recewvable from cash at bank and on deposit, and
= the interest payable on the Company’s short term borrowings

Interest rate changes may also have an impact on the market value of the Company's equity investments In particular, the effect
of interest rate changes on the earnings of companies held within the portfolio may have a significant impact on the valuations of
those companies

Management of the risk

The possible effects on the farr value of the investments that could anise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into account
when making investment decisions and borrowing decisions The Company rarely holds significant cash balances but finances part of
its investment actmty through borrowings at levels approved and monitored by the Board The Debenture Stock provides long-term
finance at a fixed rate of interest, it was 1ssued in 1987 to enable the Company to benefrt from long term planned gearing. In addition,
the Company makes use of short term borrowings At 31 May 2015 the Company had commutted bank borrowing facities for a total of
£40 million, borrowings are drawn down for short penods at rates of interest that are determined by reference to the market rates
apphcable at the time of borrowing

Interest rate exposure
The Company's financial labilties at 31 May 2015 that give exposure to fixed interest rate nsk are set out in note 14

The exposure to floating interest rates can be found on the Balance Sheet (cash and cash equivalents and bank loans)

These amounts are not necessarily representative of the exposure to interest rates dunng the year, as the level of exposure changes as
investments are made, borrowings are drawn down or repad, and the mix of borrowings subject to floating or to fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Company 1s not matenally exposed to changes in interest rates As at 31 May 2015 the Company’s bank facility allowed
borrowings to a maximum of £40 million the interest rate exposure on which 1s 0 80% plus LIBOR, the interest payable on the
Company's £20 million 1ssue of Debenture Stock 1s fixed at 10.5%.
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15 Risk management policies and procedures (continued)
e) Liquidity nsk

This 1s the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial iabilities

Management of the risk

Liquidity nsk 1s not significant as the majonity of the Company’s assets are investments in quoted equity securihies that are readily
reahsable The Company has borrowed £20 million by its 1ssue in 1987 of £20 million 10 5% Debenture Stock 2016 The Company is
able to draw short term borrowings of up to £40 million from its committed borrowing faaility which expires on 10 February 2017 with
National Australia Bank. There were borrowings of £32,201,000 drawn down under the facility at 31 May 2015 (2014 £26,030,000)

Accordingly, the Company has access to barrowings of up to £60 million the £20 million of fixed debt represented by the 1ssue of
Debenture Stock and a commutted bank facility for £40 milhion

The Board gives guidance to Henderson as to the maximum amount of the Company’s resources that should be invested in any one
company The policy 1s that the Company should remam fully invested in normal market conditions and that short term borrowings
should be used to fund short term cash requirements

Liquidity sk exposure
The remaining contractual maturities of the financial habilibes at 31 May 2015, based on the earliest date on which payment ¢an be
required, was as follows

2015 2014
Due Due
Due between Due between
within 1and5 within 1and 5
1 year years 1 year years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Debenture Stock! 22100 - 2100 22,100
Preference Stock? - - - -
Bank loans and interest 32,300 - 26,1561 -
Payables 3,119 - 1,017 -
57,519 - 29,268 22,100

1 The amounts due include Debenture Stock interest
2 See also note 14 on page 51 The Company has n issue Preference Stock without a set redemption date with a total par value of £4,000 (2014 £4,000) which has a
negligiole ongoing finance cost

f) Credit risk
The falure of the counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Company suffering
aloss

Management of the risk
The nsk 1s not significant, and 1s managed as follows

= nvestment transactions are carried out with a large number of brokers, whose credit standard 1s reviewed regularly by Henderson,
and imits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker, and

= cash at bank 1s held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings

In summary, the maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 May 2015 was to cash and cash equivalents of £10,183,000 (2014
£1,154,000), and to recewvables of £2,734,000 (2014 £2,687,000) (see note 12)
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g) Fair values of financial assets and financial habilities

The investments are held at fair value through profit or loss. All the net current liabilities are held in the Balance Sheet at a reasonable
approximation of far value At 31 May 2015 the fair value of the Debenture Stock was £21,511,000 (2014 £22,447,000) The far
value of the Debenture Stock s calculated using the prices quoted on the exchange on which the instrument trades The Debenture
Stock 1s carned in the Balance Sheet at par At 31 May 2015 the fair value of the Preference Stock was £4,000 (2014 £4,000)

The farr value of the Preference Stock 1s estimated using the pnces quoted on the exchange on which the investment trades.

The Preference Stock is carned in the Balance Sheet at par

The Debenture Stock and Preference Stock are categonised as leve! 1 in the farr value hierarchy (see 15 (h) below for definitions)

h) Fair value hierarchy disclosures
The table below sets out the fair value measurements using the IFRS 13 fair value herarchy

Categonsation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level of input that 1s sigmificant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset, as follows

Level 1 valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

Level 2 valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices

Level 3 valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on cbservable market data,

The valuation techmques used by the Company are explained in note 1(c) on page 44

Fair value hierarchy - 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equity investments 605,776 - - | 605,776
Fair value hierarchy - 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Equity investments 519,552 - - | 519552

There have been no transfers during the year between any of the levels

1) Capital management policies and procedures
The Company's capital management objectives are

= to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern, and
* to secure long term capital growth for the shareholders by investment in quoted securnties in the UK

This 15 to be achieved through an appropriate balance of equity capifal and geanng The Company’s policy 1s that its borrowings must
not exceed 30% of the shareholders’ funds

The Company’s total capital at 31 May 2015 was £615,626,000 (2014 £522,315,000) compnsing £32,201,000
(2014 £26,030,000) of unsecured bank loans, £20,000,000 (2014 £20,000,000) of Debenture Stock, £4,000 (2014 £4,000) of
Preference Stock and £563,321,000 (2014 £476,281,000) of equity share capital and reserves

At 31 May 2015 the Company had a two year revolving credit facility with National Austraka Bank The Company had drawn down

£32,201,000 under these faciities as at 31 May 2015 The Company was fully compliant with the terms of the facility, as it existed, for
the penod from 1 June 2014 to the date of this Annual Report
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16 Called up share capital

2015 2014
£000 000
Allotted, 1ssued authonised and fully paid
74,701,796 ordinary shares of 25p each (2014 74,701,796) 18,676 18,676

Dunng the year the Company made no purchases of its own 1ssued ordinary shares (2014 nd) at a total cost of Snil (2014 Sril) Since

31 May 2015 the Company has not purchased any ordinary shares

17 Capital redemption reserve and capital reserve

Investment holding gains at 31 May 2015 include £ 13,324,000 in respect of investments that are Listed on AIM (2014 £13,125,000)

Capital reserve arising on

Capital revaluation of investments | Capital reserve arising Capital

redemption reserve held on investments sold reserve

2015 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 June 2014 as previously reported 26,745 218,507 199,070 | 417577

Adjustment for investments previously

wntten down to nil value - 653 (653) -

At 1 June 2014 adjusted 26,745 219,160 198,417 | 417,577
Transfer on disposal of investments (see

note 10) - (43,669) 43,669 -

Net capital gains for the year - 73,807 15,687 | 89,494

Expenses charged to capital - - (6,097)| (5097)

At 31 May 2015 26,745 249,298 252,676 | 501,974

Capital reserve arising on

Capital revaluation of investments Capital reserve arising Capltal

redemption reserve hetd on investments sold reserve

2014 £'000 £000 £'000 £000

At 1 June 2013 26,745 181,021 166,066 | 347,087
Transfer on disposal of investments (see

note 10) - (25,1865) 25,165 -

Net capital gains for the year - 62,651 11,308 | 73959

Expenses charged to capital - - {3469)| (3.4589)

At 31 May 2014 26,745 218,507 199,070 | 417,577

18 Retained earnings — revenue reserve

2015 2014

£'000 £'000

At 1 June 13,283 10,912

Ordinary dividend paid (8,591) (7,097)

Revenue profit for the year 11,234 9,468

At 31 May 15,926 13,283
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19

20

21

Net asset value per ordinary share

The net asset value per ordinary share 1s based on the net assets attributable to the ordinary shares of £5663,321,000
{2014 £476,281,000) and on the 74,701,796 ordinary shares in 1ssue at 31 May 2015 (2014 74,701,796)

An alternative net asset value per ordinary share can be calculated by deducting from the total assets less current kahilities of the
Company, the Preference Stock and the Debenture Stock at their market (or fair) values rather than at their par {or book) values (see
note 15 (g) on page 55) The net asset value per ordinary share at 31 May 2015 calculated on this basis was 752 1p (2014 634 3p)

The Company has no secunties in 1ssue that could dilute the net asset value per ordinary share

The movement during the year of the net assets attributable to the ordinary shares was as follows

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Net assets attributable to the ordinary shares at 1 June 476281 403,420
Net gains for the year 95631 79,958
Ordinary dwvidend paid in the year (8591) (7.097)
Net assets attributable to the ordinary shares at 31 May 563,321 476,281

Capital commitments and contingent habilities

Capital commitments
There were no capital commitments as at 31 May 2015 (2014 £nil)

Contingent habilities
There were no contingent habibties in respect of sub-underwnting commitments as at 31 May 2015 (2014 £nil)

Transactions with the Manager and Related Parties

Under the terms of an agreement effective from 22 July 2014 (which replaced the agreement dated 29 September 2006 in order to
reflect the appotintment of an Altemnative Investment Fund Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive), the Company has appointed wholly owned subsidiaries of Henderson Group plc (*Henderson") to provide
investment management, accounting, secretanal and administrative services Henderson has contracted with BNP Parbas Secunties
Services to provide accounting and administration services

Detais of the fee arangements for these services are given on pages 4 and 5 The management fees payable to Henderson under the
management agreement in respect of the year ended 31 May 2015 were £1,794,0C0 (2014 £1,636,000) of which £310,000 was
accrued at 31 May 2015 (2014 accrued £296,000) VAT 1s no longer payable on management (including performance) fees

The performance fee payable to Henderson in respect of the year ended 31 May 2015 1s £2,000,000 (2014 £551,000)

In addibon to the above services, Henderson has pronided the Company with sales and marketing services The total fees pad or
payable for these serices for the year ended 31 May 2015 amounted to £41,000 (including VAT) (2014 £38,000), of which £19,000
was outstanding at 31 May 2015 (2014 £4,000)

The compensation payable to key management personnet in respect of short term employment benefits was £114,000 This drsclosure
relates wholly to the fees of £114,000 payable to the Directors in respect of the year (2014 £121,000), the Directors are all non-
executive and recewve no other compensation The Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 27 provides more detail

The Company has no employees.
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22 Value Added Tax on management fees

A decision of the European Court of Justice in 2007 that Value Added Tax (FVAT") should not be charged on fees paid for management
services provided to investment trust companies, resulted in the Company recewing, over the three financial years up to 31 May 2010,
refunds of VAT totalling £2,943,000 (relating to management fees paid during the periods 1990 to 1996 and 2000 to 2007) and
£885,000 of simple interest on those VAT refunds The wnte-backs of VAT were allocated between revenue return and capital return
according to the allocation of the amounts onginally pard The interest pard by HM Revenue & Customs ("*HMRC") on the VAT recovered
was included in other income

There remain outstanding claims relating to the period 1996 to 2000 and claims for compound interest from 1980 onwards No
amounts have been recogmnised in respect of these claims as it 1s currently uncertain whether any further amounts will be recovered
The Company is a participant in on-going action against HMRC to recover these amounts
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BACS

Dividends can be paid by means of BACS (Bankers' Automated
Cleaning Services), mandate forms for this purpose are available from
the Reqgistrar Alternatively, shareholders can wnite to the Registrar
{the address 15 given on page 17) to give their mstructions, these
must include the bank account number, the bank account title and
the sort code of the bank to which payments are to be made

Equality Act 2010

Copies of this report and other documents 1ssued by the Company
are avalable from the Corporate Secretary If needed, copies can be
made avallable in a variety of formats, including Braille or larger type
as appropnate

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC,
which has installed textphones to allow speech and heanng impaired
people who have their own textphone to cantact them directly,
without the need for an intermediate operator by dialling

0870 702 0005 Specially trained operators are available dunng
normal business hours to answer quenes via thts service
Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a “typetalk” operator
(provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf People) dial 18001
followed by the number you wish to dial

FCA Restrictions

The Company currently conducts its affars so that its ordinary shares
of 25p each can be recommended by iFAs to ordinary retall investors
in accordance with the Financial Conduct Authonty's (“FCA™Y rules in
retation to non-mainstream investment products and intends to
continue to do so for the foreseeable future The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restnctions which apply to non-mainstream
investment products because they are shares in an investment trust.

ISA

The Company intends to continue to manage its affars in order to
qualify as an eligible investment for a stocks and shares ISA

Share Price Listings

The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares 1s published daily
in The Financial Times, which also shows figures for the estimated
net asset value (“NAV™) per share and discount.

Performance Details/Share Price information

Details of the Company's share price and NAV per share can be
found on the website www hendersonsmallercompanies.com
The Company’s NAV is published daly

Shareholder Details

Shareholders who hold their shares in certificated form can

check ther shareholding with the Reqistrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, via www computershare com Please note that to
gain access to your details on the Computershare site you will need
the holder reference number shown on your share certificate

History

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Acts 1862 to
1886 on 16 December 1887 with the name of The Trustees,
Executors and Securihes Insurance Corporation, Limited The name
was changed in August 1917 to The Trustees Corporation Limited,
in Apnl 1982 to TR Trustees Corporation PLC, 1n October 1990 to
TR Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC and in September
1997 to The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc
Whilst the Trustee Department operated until June 1978, the
principal business of the Company has been that of an investment
trust company

Warning to shareholders

Many compamies are aware that their shareholders have receved
unsolicited phone calls or correspondence concerning nwvestment
matters These are typically from overseas based “brokers” wheo
target UK shareholders offering to sell them what often tum out to
be worthless or high risk shares in US or UK investments They
can be very persistent and extremely persuasive Shareholders are
therefore adwised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice, offers
to buy shares at a discount or offers of free company reports

Please note that it 1s very unlikely that exther the Company or the
Company’s Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC, would
make unsolicited telephone calls to shareholders and that any such
calls would relate only to official documentation already circulated to
shareholders and never in respect of investment “advice”

If you are in any doubt about the veractty of an unsolictted phone call
please call the Corporate Secretary at the number pronded on page 17
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

(unaudited)

Henderson and the Company are required to make certain
disclosures available to investors in accordance with the Alternatve
Investment Fund Managers Directive (*AIFMD”} Those disclosures
that are required to be made pre-investment are included within a
Key Investor Information Document (*KIID™) which can be found on
the Company's website www hendersonsmallercompanies com
There have been no matenal changes to the disclosures contained
within the KHD since publication in July 2014

The penodic disclosures to investors are made below

= information on the mvestment strategy, geographic and sector
investment focus and principal stock exposures are included in
the Strategic Report A full list of portfolio holdings i1s included on
pages 14 and 15,

= none of the Company's assets are subject to speciat
arrangements arising from their ilhguid nature,

* the Strategic Report and note 15 to the accounts set out the nisk
profile and nsk management systems in place There have been
no changes to the nsk management systems in place in the
period under review and no breaches of any of the nisk imits set,
with no breach expected,

= there are no new arrangements for managing the iquidity of the
Company or any matenal changes to the iquidity management
systems and procedures employed by Henderson, and

= all authorised Alternative Investment Fund Managers are required
to comply with the AIFMD Remuneration Code [t 1s therefore
anticipated that the Henderson Remuneration Folicy and
associated financial disclosures will be made with the Company’s
Annual Report from 2016 following its first full performance
perniod after the introduction of the AIFMD

Leverage

Although leverage 1s often used as another term for geanng, under the
AIFMD regulations leverage 1s expressed as a ratio of the exposure of
debt, non-sterling currency, equity or currency hedging and derwatves
exposure against the net asset value (*NAV"} It defines two types of
leverage, the gross method and the commitment method

These are essentially the same other than the commitment method
allows dervative instruments to be netted off to reflect “netting” or
*hedging arrangemenis’ Non-sterling cash s deemed to carry a
currency exposure so1s considered to be leverage In accordance
with the AIFMD the Company 1s obhiged to disclose the maximum
expected leverage levels under both methods and this 1s disclosed
on page 61 In order to comply with the AIFMD the maximum
leverage levels have been set in accordance with the maximum
gearing allowable by the Company'’s Articles of Association
However, the day-to-day management of geanng and leverage
levels will be conducted within the tighter limits set by the
Company's investment policy

Leverage may be apphed to the portfolio by utilising financial gearing
(such as bank borrowings and overdrafts) and synthetic geanng
(through denwvatives and/or other non-fully funded instruments or

techniques for efficient portfolio management purposes such as
stock-lending) Typically, leverage will anise through the use of ndex
futures, forward foreign exchange contracts or contracts for
difference, where cash is paid to the counterparty as a margin
against the current mark-to-market value of the dervatve contract,
as a result, depending on the type of instrument, a retatively small
movement in the price of a contract may result in a profit or a loss
which 1s high in proportion to the amount of funds actually placed as
mitial margin and may even result in further loss exceeding any
margin deposited The use of leverage therefore creates additional
nsks and may significantly increase the market and counterparty nsk
of the Company through non-fully funded exposure to underlying
markets or secunties

Leverage is considered in terms of the Company's overall “exposure® to
financial or synthetic geanng and includes any method by which the
exposure of the Company 1s increased whether through borrowing of
cash or secunities, or leverage embedded in derwvative positions or by
any other means Hendersan is required, n accordance with the
AIFMD, to calculate and mornitor the level of leverage of the Company,
expressed as the ratio between the total exposure of the Company
and its NAV with exposure values being calculated by both the gross
method and commitment method

Exposure values under the gross method basis are calculated as the
absolute value of all posittons in the portfolio, this includes all eligible
assets and habilities, relevant borrowings, denvatives (converted into
their equivalent underlying positions) and all other positions, even
those held purely for nsk reduction purposes, such as forward foreign
exchange contracts held for currency hedging

The gross method of exposure of the Company requires the
calculabion to

* include the sum of all non-derivative assets (if applicable) held at
market value, plus the absolute value of all such habilihes,

+ exclude cash and cash equivalents which are highly hquid
investments held in the base currency of the Company, that are
readily converhble to a known amount of cash, which are subject
to an insigndficant nsk of change in value and provide a return no
greater than the rate of a three month high quality bond,

* nclude denvative instruments which are converted into the
equivalent position in their underlying assets,

* exclude cash borrowings that remain in cash or cash equivalents
and where the amounts payable are known,

* include exposures resulting from the reinvestment of cash
borrowings, expressed as the higher of the market value of the
investment realised or the total amount of cash borrowed, and
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Exposure values under the commitment method basis are calculated
on a similar basis o the above, but may take into account the effect
of netting off instruments to reflect eligible netting and hedging
arrangements on ehgible assets and different treatment of cerfain
cash and cash equivalent items in line with regulatory requirements

The calculation of leverage assumes that a leverage percentage of
100% equates to zero leverage A percentage above 100% would
mean that the portfolic had leverage equal to the percentage amount
above 100%

The table below sets out the current maximum permitted imit and
actual level of leverage for the Company

As a percentage of net asset velue
Commitment
Gross method method
% %
Maximum level of
leverage 200 200
Actual 107 109
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